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Finance Division 
50 West 13th Street 
Dubuque, Iowa 52001-4864 

November 25, 1996 

TO THE CITIZENS OF DUBUQUE, IOWA: 

Du°~~lrn 
~ck~ 

The comprehensive annual :financial report of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1996, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and 
the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with this 
governing body. To the best of our knowledge and belief: the enclosed data are accurate in all 
material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the :financial position and 
results of operations of the various funds and account groups of this municipality. All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the government's :financial activities 
have been included. 

The comprehensive annual :financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, 
:financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the 
government's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The :financial section includes 
the general purpose :financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group 
:financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report on the financial statements and 
schedules. The statistical section includes selected :financial and demographic information, 
generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

The City of Dubuque is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the 
provisions of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Information related to this 
single audit, including the schedule of federal and other financial assistance, findings and 
recommendations, and auditor's reports on the internal control structure and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, are included in the single audit section of this report. 

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City of Dubuque, as well as all of 
its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the City of Dubuque 
is financially accountable. The City provides a full range of services including police and fire 
protection; sanitation services; the construction and maintenance of roads, streets, and 
infrastructure; inspection and licensing functions ; maintenance of grounds and buildings; municipal 
airport ; library; recreational activities and cultural events. In addition to general government 
activities, the municipality owns and operates enterprises for a water system, water pollution 
control facility, parking facilities, refuse collection, and public transportation. Also, the governing 
body is :financially accountable for the operations of the Dubuque Library Board, Airport 
Commission, Civic Center Commission, Cable TV Commission, Transit Board, and the Park and 
Recreation Commission. Therefore, these activities are included in the reporting entity. 

Service People Integ rit y Responsibility Innovation Tea mwo rk 
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This report includes the Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency (DMASWA) as a 
discretely presented component unit. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a 
separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from 
the City of Dubuque and to differentiate its :financial position, results of operations and cash flows 
from those of the City. The City of Dubuque appoints a voting majority to the DMASWA 
governing board and operates the landfill. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The City of Dubuque is located on the Mississippi River, in northeast Iowa, adjacent to the 
states of Illinois and Wisconsin. The City was founded by Julien Dubuque in 1785 and is the 
oldest City in Iowa. The City of Dubuque has a unique combination of the old and new ranging 
from cable cars, Victorian architecture, and a Civil War shot tower, to an enclosed shopping mall, 
riverboat casino, and a pari-mutuel dog track with slot machines. Dubuque has a stable and 
diversified manufacturing base as well as being the major tri-state retail center. Retail sales in FY 
96 totaled $771,946,280, growing at the rate of 12.09 percent over the previous year. The City 
of Dubuque currently has a land area of 25 square miles and a population of 59,084. As the 
largest City in the tri-state area, Dubuque serves as the hub of a trade area with a· population 
estimated at 246,290. Manufacturing has remained a strong employment sector in the Dubuque 
area. Strength in manufacturing was reflected in a May 31, 1996, report from the Associated 
Press which noted that Dubuque experienced the second highest rate of increase in exports of any 
city in the United States. Manufacturing growth potential was greatly improved by state 
legislation which eliminated property tax on machinery and equipment. The machinery and 
equipment tax revenue previously received by local governments will be replaced by the state on a 
declining basis over the next several years. 

The City of Dubuque is empowered to levy a property tax on real property located within 
the City limits. The City has operated under a council-manager form of government since 1920. 
Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of a 
mayor and a six-member council. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for 
passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring the City Manager, City 
Attorney, and City Clerk. The City Manager is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day 
operations of the government, and for appointing the heads of the government's departments. 
The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members are elected to four-year 
staggered terms with three council members elected every two years. The mayor is elected to a 
four-year term. Four of the council members are elected within their respective wards, the mayor 
and the two remaining council members are elected at large. 

The economic condition of Dubuque reflects the strength of the Midwest regional economy 
over the last several years. Housing starts have remained strong even with somewhat higher 
mortgage rates. Building permits were issued for 75 new single family units and 74 new multi­
family units during the year. There has been significant investment in industrial commercial and 
retail development in the community. Several new commercial industrial and institutional 
construction projects were initiated during the year with 876,589 square feet of new development 
plans approved in FY 96. Major commercial developments include a 123,000 square foot medical 
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clinic on the west-side, a 30,000 square foot orthopedic and neurology clinic and a 45,000 square 
foot expansion of the Eagle Point Software offices. The Nordstrom regional distribution center 1 
more than tripled in size by adding a 343,000 square foot automated warehouse addition. The 
A.Y. McDonald Company, a local plumbing products manufacturing company, expanded their 
foundry by 18,000 square feet to add another furnace to accommodate increased production 
demand. 

In September of 1995 FDL Foods, a Dubuque based meat packing company and one of the 
City's largest employers, closed the kill and cut operations in its Dubuque pork processing plant. 
The closing of a large portion of the plant resulted in the lay-off of over 1,000 workers. With the 
cooperation of the state, county, city, and several local agencies, the sale of the FDL plant to 
Farmland Foods was completed on July 1, 1996. Farmland began a $7.5 million project to 
upgrade the plant and equipment and re-opened the kill and cut operations on September 16, 
1996. Employment at the plant nearly doubled going from 400 to 750. Commitments have been 
made to increase employment to 1,400 by September 1997 and 1,800 by September 1998. 

The unemployment rate for Dubuque County averaged 4.8 percent for the year, up a full 
percentage point from FY 95 . The increase in the unemployment rate was heavily influenced by 
the lay-offs at FDL foods and restructuring at the ERTL Toy Company in nearby Dyersville. T.a.e 
unemployment rate has been on a steady downward trend since a peak of 6.4 percent in March 
1996 and is expected to return to FY 95 levels -with the re-opening of the Farmland Foods 
packing plant and the numerous expansions underway in other businesses. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

For the Year. The City of Dubuque sta:E£: following specific directives of the Mayor, City 
Council and City Manager, have been involved in a variety of projects throughout the year. These 
projects reflect the City's commitment to continue to provide high quality services to the citizens 
of Dubuque-within the budget guidelines set by the Mayor and City Council. 

Major street and highway improvements continued at rapid pace and have remained one of 
the City Council's highest priorities. Major improvements on Highway 20 have progressed on 
schedule. The completion of this project in 1997 will make the City's primary east-west highway 
connection a limited access four-lane highway through the City. Grade work was nearly 
completed on the four-lane expansion to Highway 61 south. The Highway 61 improvement will 
give Dubuque a limited access four-lane connection to Interstate 80 and the Quad Cities. Major 
city street improvements include re-paving of White Street, Rhomberg Avenue, Lincoln Avenue, 
and Walnut and Wilson Streets as well as concrete reconstruction of the portion of Clarke Drive 
serving Clarke College. The replacement of the Fremont street bridge and related grade changes 
have greatly improved neighborhood access to the City's growing south-side. 

Other major infrastructure improvements include the complete concrete reconstruction of 
the primary runway at the Dubuque Regional airport. This $2. 7 million dollar project was ninety 
percent funded by the Federal Aviation Administration. The third and final phase of major 
reconstruction of the City's wastewater treatment plant was initiated during FY 96. The final 
improvements to the plant will include an upgrade of the secondary treatment facility and 
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installation of a plant supervisory control and data acquisition system (SCADA). The completion 
of the improvements will lower the operating cost of the plant and help to meet required standards 
for wastewater discharge. 

Several programs were implemented or expanded as part of the City' s neighborhood 
reinvestment strategy. The City's ''Healthy Neighborhoods Project", a study to address the 
housing and community development needs of neighborhoods, was recognized with an Iowa 
League of Cities All-Star Community Award. The Dubuque Dispute Resolution Center was 

· established with citizens trained in mediation techniques. A system was established and 
coordinated by the City to solve neighborhood disputes through citizen mediation. A zoning 
enforcement officer was hired to assist in enforcing quality of life and nuisance zoning violations 
to help improve neighborhoods. The youth recreation program was expanded to include a day 
camp program for children of low income neighborhoods. The community oriented policing 
program was expanded and has resulted in a sharp reduction in crime and complaints in the target 
areas. A park capital improvement program was implemented and will make $3 .5 million in 
improvements to City parks over the next seven years. As part of the program to improve City 
parks, old playground equipment was replaced with modern play units in five City park locations, 
tennis courts were re-surfaced and roadway improvements were made to a number of park 
facilities. The City's Eagle Point Park was the site of a State Sesquicentennial Celebration 
sponsored by the City with the cooperation of many local service agencies. The ''Day in the Park" 
celebration drew 15,000 people. 

City gaming related revenue has increased substantially due to a gambling referendum 
passed in 1994 which allowed installation of slot machines at the Dubuque Greyhound Park dog 
track and removed the wagering limits on the Riverboat Casino. This increase in revenue will be 
used to fund capital improvements and will be part of a program to eliminate the regular issuance 
of essential corporate purpose general obligation bonds. The elimination of debt over a ten year 
period will save the City approximately $1,000,000 per year in interest expense. 

For the Future. The Mayor and City Council will continue to take action to achieve their goals 
of maintaining a strong local economy, sustaining stable property tax levies, and enhancing safety 
and security of citizens through neighborhood vitality. A program of comprehensive service 
reviews has continued as a vehicle for analyzing City services, identifying opportunities for 
improvement, and determining areas of possible cost reductions. The goal of the service review 
program is to ensure that services desired by the citizens are provided in the most cost effective 
and efficient method possible. 

Additions of new commercial and industrial businesses and the expansion of existing 
companies has greatly reduced the availability of industrial sites within the City. Development of a 
new industrial park is one of the City Council's highest priorities. An industrial park site study 
was completed in FY 96 in conjunction with an annexation study. Acquisition and site 
development is planned for calendar 1997 with availability of approximately 300 acres to be 
completed in the fall of 1997. The addition of industrial sites will be essential to allow for 
continued economic growth and employment expansion. 
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The City will continue a program of increased investment in neighborhood streets. The 
condition of the City streets will be greatly improved over the next ten years as the long-term 
capital improvement program is implemented with a strong emphasis on arterial, neighborhood 
streets, and other infrastructure. Major projects in process include Radford Road, Kelly Lane, 
and the Northwest Arterial expansion to four lanes. Tue planned street projects will provide 
improved transportation services to both neighborhoods and commercial and industrial locations. 

A river-front development plan was adopted that outlines plans for the City's river-front 
area which is currently a mixture of commercial, industrial, and tourist sites. The City has 
committed to $3 .5 million of investment in the river-front over the next five years. Private 
participation is a significant portion of the development plan, and a citizen committee was formed 
to assist in fund raising and plan implementation. Plans were also completed for bike/hike trails 
through the City which would provide a link to the popular Heritage Trail, a regional bike/hike 
trail built on an abandoned rail line. A grant of over $150,000 for the bike/hike trail was 
approved by the Iowa Department of Transportation which will start the process of trail 
construction. 

Department Focus - City of Dubuque Water Department 

The City of Dubuque Water Department has a long history of providing the citizens of 
Dubuque with a quality supply of water. In 1838, the Town Trustees ordained that ' 'For the 
better supply of good and wholesome water and in order to guard against the destruction of 
property by fire, the President be hereby authorized in a contract and have constructed in a 
substantial manner, three public wells in such situation in the town as will most suit the public 
convenience. " The waterworks system became a private corporation in 1870 when a large 
artesian well was discovered while blasting a lead mining tunnel. In 1900, the City purchased the 
Dubuque Waterworks. Despite Dubuque's location on the Mississippi, the municipal water 
supply has always been obtained from wells. Currently there are five shallow wells and four deep 
wells in service. 

The Eagle Point Water Treatment Plant is a modem facility with a capacity to treat 
18,000,000 gallons of water per day. The plant operations are controlled by a computerized 
supervisory control data acquisition system (SCADA) which makes possible one person operation 
of the plant. A fourth pressure zone was completed in February of 1995 to better serve the City's 
expanding west side, and also to provide the capacity for additional commercial, industrial, and 
residential development. Other recent plant improvements include installation of a new 
emergency generator and electrical system conversion to a 480 volt service on all pumps and 
motors to greatly improve efficiency and reduce energy consumption. 

The Water Department recently completed a comprehensive departmental review as part of 
a City-wide program to review the costs and benefits of service delivery. A task force of 
employees was formed to perform the review and make recommendations. Improvements 
experienced as a result of the study included the reduction of staffing levels by six positions, 
energy efficiency savings, revenue increased through changes in the meter replacement program, 
and increased employee safety. Total saVlilgs realized were $341,090 in the first year of 

8 

I 
I 

I 



implementation. The Water Department was the recipient of an Iowa League of Cities All-Star 
Community Award for the results of this departmental review program. 

The Water Department services 250 miles of water mains, maintains 19,616 service 
connections, 2,000 fire hydrants, and provides water at an average daily consumption of 
8,519,740 gallons. The Water Department is staffed by 24 full time employees who implement 
capital and technological improvements to provide the City with safe reliable drinking water at a 
low price. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure 
designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and 
to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of :financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control 
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are 
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: ( 1) the cost of a control should not 
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City of Dubuque' s 
government also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place 
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This 
internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit 
staff As a part of the government's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the 
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal financial 
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the government has complied with applicable 
laws and regulations. The results of the government's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 1996, provided no instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or 
significant violations of applicable laws and regulation. 

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the government maintains budgetary controls. The objective of 
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by the City Council. All funds are included in the annual 
appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures 
cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by program. The government also 
maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique for accomplishing budgetary 
control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end. However, encumbrances generally are re­
appropriated as part of the following year's budget. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the :financial section of this 
report, the government continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 

General Government Functions. The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, 
special revenue fund and debt service fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, and 
the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues. 
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Increase 
(Decrease) Percent 

Amount Percent from1995 of Increase 
Revenues (OOO's) of Total (OOO's) (Decrease) 

Taxes 21,619 54.20% 730 3.49% 

Special assessment 144 0.36% (297) (67.35%) 

Licenses and permits 717 1.80% (204) (22.15%) 
Intergovernmental 9,253 23.20% (204) (2.16%) 
Charges for services 5,491 13.77% 997 22.19% 
Fines and forfeits 349 0.88% 8 2.35% 

Miscellaneous 621 1.56% (69) (10.00%) 
Interest 1,686 4.23% (469) (21.76%) 

Total Revenues 39,880 100.00% 492 1.25% 

The decrease in special assessment revenue is due to a reduction in projects funded by 
special assessments and early payment of assessments due to low market interest rates during the 
prior year. 

License and permit revenue decreased due to a reduction in build.mg permit activity related 
to a large hail storm which damaged several buildmgs in the City and created a large increase in 
build.mg permit activity in the prior year. 

Intergovernmental receipts were increased due to loan pass-through funds related to the 
purchase ofFDL Foods by Farmland Foods. 

The decrease in interest revenue was due to a prior year recovery of interest on funds held in 
receivership due to the termination of the Iowa Trust. 

The tax rate of$5 .7826 established for general fund operations (excludmg fringe benefits) is 
within the tax rate limit of $8.10 per $1 ,000 of taxable valuation allowed by the Code of Iowa. 
The $.9340 decrease from FY 1995 is primarily a result of increased valuations. 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund and debt 
service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, and the percentage of increases 
and decreases in relation to prior year amounts. 
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Increase 
(Decrease) Percent 

Amount Percent from1995 of Increase 
Expenditures (OOO's) of Total (OOO's) (Decrease) 

Current: 

Administration 3,253 9.35% 326 11.14% 
Protective services 12,202 35.09% 455 3.87% 
Facilities and environment 10,043 28.88% 258 2.64% 
Leisure services 5,508 15.84% 301 5.78% 
Other 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Debt Service: 

Principal 2,851 8.20% 63 2.26% 

Interest and fiscal charges 899 2.59% (78) (7.98%) 
Capital outlay 17 0.05% 13 325.00% 

Total Expenditures 34,773 100.00% 1,338 4.00% 

Changes in expenditure amounts for the Administration program was primarily related to 
changes in the capital improvement programs in this program including implementation of a 
Geographical Information System Operating expenditures have held steady to slightly rising in 
all program areas. 

The decrease in interest and fiscal charges is due to scheduled reductions in outstanding 
principal which has reduced interest expense. 

The increase in capital outlay was small in actual dollars and reflects completion of a greater 
amount of capital projects. 

General Fund Balance. The State of Iowa recommends that a working cash balance for the 
subsequent year be maintained in an amount equivalent to either (a) anticipated revenues, less 
anticipated expenditures, for the first three months, or (b) five percent of the budget provision. 

The five-percent method employed by the City of Dubuque required a reserve amount of 
approximately $939,000 as of June 30, 1996, and this amount was available. The Dubuque City 
Council has set a budget guideline of maintaining a general fund balance at ten percent of the 
budget provision. The Council budget guideline requires a reserve amount of approximately 
$1 ,878,000, and this amount was available. 

Enterprise Operations. The enterprise operations consist of water and wastewater systems, 
parking facilities, refuse collection, and a transit system With respect to the outstanding parking 
and water revenue bonds, earnings from the related utilities have met bond covenant requirements 
for net revenues to be equal to either 130% or 135% of current debt service requirements. 
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Debt Administration. At June 30, i996, the City of Dubuque had a number of debt issues 
outstanding. These issues included $14,200,000 of general obligation bonds, $835,000 of tax,­
increment :financing bonds, and $2,974,190 of revenue bonds. The government has maintained its 
Aa rating from Moody's Investors Service on general obligation bond issues. Under current state 
statutes, the government's general obligation bonded debt issues are subject to a legal limitation 
based on 5 percent of total actual value of real property. As of June 30, 1996, the government's 
net general obligation bonded debt of $14,200,000 was well below the legal limit of $74,360,000, 
and debt per capita equaled $240.68. 

Cash Management. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, 
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury securities, federal agency 
obligations, and authorized mutual funds. The City recorded investment ea:rn.mgs of $2,280,500 
for the year. 

The investment policy adopted by the City Council stresses the importance of capital 
preservation. The policy directives intend to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a 
competitive yield on the portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either covered by federal 
depository insurance or collateralized. All collateral on uninsured deposits was held either by the 
State Treasurer, the government, its agent, or a :financial institution's trust department in the 
government's name. All of the investments subject to risk categorization were classified in the 
category oflowest credit risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The 
non-classified investments includes mutual funds. The government's deferred compensation 
mutual fund is included in this section. 

Risk Management. The City of Dubuque is a member of a statewide risk pool for local 
governments, the Iowa Communities Assurance Pool. The coverage for general and auto liability, 
as well as public official and police professional liability, are acquired through this agency. 
Worker's compensation coverage up to $400,000 for each accident is provided through self­
insurance. The accumulated reserve provision for such claims equaled $720,679 as of June 30, 
1996. The City has also established self-insurance plans for medical, dental, prescription drug, 
and short-term disability. The accumulated reserve provision for such claims equaled $1,366,314 
as of June 30, 1996. All self-insured health plans are certified as actuarially sound and certificates 
of compliance have been filed with the State of Iowa. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants. The accounting firm of Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. was selected for this 
purpose. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was 
designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and related 0MB 
Circular A-128. The auditor's report on the general purpose financial statements and combining 
and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the :financial section of this report. 
The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the Single Audit 
Section. 
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Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
( GFOA) awarded a certificate of achievement for excellence in :financial reporting to the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, for its comprehensive annual :financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
1995. 

In order to be awarded a certificate of achievement, a government must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual :financial report, whose contents conform 
to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles 
and applicable legal requirements. 

A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The current report will 
be submitted to the GFOA for review and recommendations. Expectations are high that this 
year's report will again meet the standards for excellence in :financial reporting. Efforts were made 
to correct past deficiencies and to incorporate suggested improvements. 

The City also received the GFOA Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for the annual 
budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1995. In order to receive the award, the government 
unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an 
operations guide, as a :financial plan, and as a communications medium 

Acknowledgments. We compliment the staff of the finance department for their help in 
preparing this report. We also commend the City Council and all department and division 
managers for their interest and support in planning and conducting the :financial operations of the 
City of Dubuque in a responsible and progressive manner. We also thank the independent 
certified public accountants, Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P., whose competent assistance and 
technical expertise have enabled the production of this report. 

Sincerely, 

,, 

/j t' ~' -~( 11 ; /i i t 

. ;JJ I I 1i . 
L{__; vu./ ilv 11 / l' . y 

c ael C. Van Milli.gen 
City Manager Finance Director 
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Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Dubuque, 
Iowa 

For its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 1995 

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers 

Association of the United States and Canada to 
government units and public employee retirement 

systems whose comprehensive annual financial 
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 
standards in government accounting 

and financial reporting. 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the 
City of Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, as listed 
in the table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the 
responsibility of the management of the City of Dubuque, Iowa. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted audit i ng 
standards; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of 
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local 
Governments. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-128 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general 
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion . 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City 
of Dubuque, Iowa, as of June 30, 1996, and the results of its operations and 
the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds 
for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

In accordance with Government Audi ting Standards, we have also issued a 
report dated November 25, 1996, on our consideration of the City of Dubuque, 
Iowa's, internal control structure and a report dated November 25, 1996, on 
its compliance with laws and regulations. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general 
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual 
fund and account group financial statements, schedules, and statistical data 
listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial 
statements of the City of Dubuque, Iowa . Such information, except for that 
portion marked "unaudited" on which we express no opinion, has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material 
respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Dubuque, lowa 
Nov ember 25, 1996 

-17-
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups, and 
Discrete ly Presented Component Unit 

June 3 0, 19 9 6 

Governmental Fund Ty2es 

Special Debt Capital 
General Revenue Service Projects 

Assets and Other Debits 

Assets: 
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 6,862,305 $ 14,102,195 $ 1,677,632 $ 9,477,065 

Cash and pooled cash investments -
non expendable trust 0 0 0 0 

Investments 0 0 0 0 
Insurance deposit 0 0 0 0 

Receivables: 
Taxes 75,385 40,534 31,564 0 
Accounts 389,790 0 0 0 
Special assessments 0 371, 632 0 
Accrued interest 269,074 403,208 13,928 78,783 

Notes - current 0 796,578 50,000 0 

Notes - long-term 0 10,253,157 0 0 
Intergovernmental 153,658 1,865,794 0 757,883 

Due from other funds 127,742 0 0 0 

Due from primary government 0 0 0 0 

Inventory 0 0 0 0 

Prepaid items 0 0 0 0 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and pooled cash investments 0 0 0 0 

Accrued interest receivable 0 0 0 0 

Deferred charges 0 0 0 0 

Land 0 0 0 0 

Buildings and improvements 0 0 0 0 

Improvements other than buildings 0 0 0 0 

Machinery and equipment 0 0 0 0 

Construction in progress 0 0 0 0 

Accumulated depreciation 0 0 0 0 

Other Debits: 
Amount available in debt 

service funds 0 0 0 0 

Amount to be provided for 
retirement of general 
long-term debt 0 0 0 0 

Total Assets and Other Debits ~ 7 ,877,954 ~ 27,833,098 ~ 1,773,124 ~ 10,313,731 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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Pro2rietary 

Enter12rise I 
$ 10,580,946 I 

0 
0 I 0 

6,113 
1,141,010 

0 
92,158 

0 

0 
2,169 

0 

0 
243,031 

5,037 

1,087,448 
6,378 

16,550 
1,151,521 

38,820,052 
13,821,277 

28,518,865 
11,263,527 

(43,378,577) 

0 

0 

~ 63,377,505 

I 



EXHIBIT 1 

Component 
Fiduciary Totals Unit Totals 

Fund Types Fund Type Account Groups Primary Dubuque Reporting 

Trust General General Government Metropolitan Entity 
Internal and Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Area Solid (Memorandum 
Service Agency Assets Debt Only) Waste Agency Only) 

$ 2,098,207 $ 677,989 $ 0 $ 0 $ 45,476,339 $ 5,020,382 $ 50,496,721 

0 81,599 0 0 81,599 0 81,599 
0 6,951,505 0 0 6,951,505 0 6,951,505 

1,000 0 0 0 1,000 0 1,000 

0 0 0 0 153,596 0 153,596 
0 16,201 0 0 1,547,001 220,278 1,767,279 
0 0 0 0 371,632 0 371,632 

22,347 874 0 0 880,372 73,333 953,705 
0 0 0 0 846,578 0 846,578 
0 0 0 0 10,253,157 0 10,253,157 
0 0 0 0 2,779,504 0 2,779,504 

0 0 0 0 127,742 0 127,742 
0 0 0 0 0 47,488 47,488 

18,041 0 0 0 261,072 0 261,072 
0 0 0 0 5,037 0 5,037 

0 62,142 0 0 1,149,590 453,169 1,602,759 
0 0 0 0 6,378 0 6,378 
0 0 0 0 16,550 0 16,550 

0 0 9,187,932 0 10,339,453 552,528 10,891,981 

0 0 35,790,981 0 74,611,033 3,146,598 77,757,631 

0 0 4,617,891 0 18,439,168 0 18,439,168 

142,338 0 12,423,509 0 41,084,712 1,381,261 42,465,973 

0 0 1,275,471 0 12,538,998 91,852 12,630,850 
(103,373) 0 0 0 (43,481,950) (2,104,748) (45,586,698) 

0 0 0 1,750,034 1,750,034 0 1,750,034 

0 0 0 13,539,333 13,539.333 0 13,539,333 

$ 2,178,560 $ 7,790,310 $ 63,295,784 $ 15,289,367 $ 199,729,433 $ 8,882,141 $ 208,611,574 

(continued) 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA I I 
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups, and I Discretely Presented Component Unit 

June 30, 1996 I 
Governmental Fund T)'.'.Ees Proprietar)'.'. 

Special Debt Capital I General Revenue Service Projects Enteri;,rise 
Liabilities, Equity, and 

Other Credits 

Liabilities : 

Accounts payable $ 105,999 $ 5,049 , 194 $ 0 $ 1 , 009,687 $ 151,932 
Accrued payroll 421,117 89,980 0 0 116,707 
General obligation bonds 

payable - current 0 0 0 0 190,000 
Revenue bonds payable - current 0 0 0 0 110, 000 

' Accrued compensated absences 329,537 37,630 0 0 273,244 
Due to employees 0 0 0 0 0 
Intergovernmental payable 0 117,734 0 0 0 
Due t o other funds 0 99,217 0 0 0 
Due to component unit 0 0 0 0 47,488 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Revenue bonds payable 0 0 0 0 450,000 
Accrued interest payable 0 0 0 0 42,854 
Matured interest payable 0 0 300 0 0 

Notes payable 0 0 0 0 0 
General obligation bonds payable 0 0 0 0 1,420,000 
Revenue bonds payable 0 0 0 0 2,414 ,1 90 

Landfill closure and 
postclosure care 0 0 0 0 0 

Tax-increment financing 

bonds payable 0 0 0 0 0 
Deferred revenue 54 431 39 1 701 22 790 0 0 

Total Liabilities 911 084 5 785 456 23 090 1 009 687 5,216,415 

Equity and Other Credits: 

Contributed capital 0 0 0 0 32,938,618 
Investment in general fixed assets 0 0 0 0 0 
Retained earnings: 

Reserved by State statute 0 0 0 0 0 
Reserved by bond ordinance 0 0 0 0 1,093,826 
Unreserved 0 0 0 0 24,128,646 

Fund Balances: 

Reserved for long-term 

notes receivable 0 10,253,157 0 0 0 

Reserved for encumbrances 394,95 1 497,969 57,927 1,671,310 0 
Reserved for dog track 0 0 0 1,05 9,999 0 
Reserved by franchise agreement 0 0 0 0 0 

Reserved for endowments 0 0 0 0 0 

Reserved for debt service 0 0 1,692,107 0 0 
Unreserved, undesignated 6 571 919 11,296,516 0 6 572 735 0 

Total Equity and Other 

Credits 6 966 870 22 047 642 1 750 034 9 304 044 58,161.090 

Tota l Liabilities, Equity, 

and Other Credits ~ 7,877.954 ~ 27 , 833,098 ~ 1,773,12 4 ~ 10,313,731 ~ 63,377,505 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Fund Types 
Fiduciary 
Fund Type 

Component 
Uni t Totals 

Primary Account Groups Dubuque 

Trust General Government Metropolitan 
I nternal and General Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Area Sol i d 

~~~S=e=r ~v =ic=e~~--~~A=g~e=n=C~Y~~~-~~A=s~s~e~t~s~~--~~~D=e=b=t~~~~~~O=n=l~Y~l~~~ Waste Agency 

$ 542,996 $ 2,566 $ 0 $ 0 $ 6,862,374 $ 195 , 346 
26,320 0 0 0 654,124 9, 612 

0 0 0 0 190,000 0 
0 0 0 0 ll0 , 000 0 
0 9,013 0 1,452,938 2,102 , 362 36,657 

0 6,961,335 0 0 6,961,335 0 

0 0 0 0 ll7,734 45 , 187 

28,525 0 0 0 127,742 0 
0 0 0 0 47,488 0 

0 0 0 0 450 , 000 0 
0 0 0 0 42,854 0 

0 0 0 0 300 0 

0 0 0 411 ,429 4ll, 429 0 

0 0 0 12 , 590 , 000 14,010,000 0 

0 0 0 0 2,414, 1 90 0 

0 0 0 0 0 479,914 

0 0 0 835,000 835 , 000 0 

0 288 000 0 0 756 922 0 

597 841 7 260 914 0 15 289 367 36 , 093 , 854 766 716 

0 0 0 0 32 , 938,618 0 

0 0 63,295,784 0 63 , 295,784 0 

0 0 0 0 0 453,169 

0 0 0 0 1,093,826 0 

1,580,719 0 0 0 25 , 709,365 7 , 662,256 

0 0 0 0 10,253,157 0 

0 0 0 0 2,622,157 0 

0 0 0 0 1,059 , 999 0 

0 52,312 0 0 52,312 0 

0 81 , 989 0 0 81,989 0 

0 0 0 0 1,692,107 0 

0 395 095 0 0 24 , 836 , 265 0 

1 580 719 529 396 63,295 , 784 0 163,635,579 8 ,11 5 , 425 

~ 2,178,560 ~ 7 ! 790 , 310 ~ 63,295,784 ~ 15 , 289 , 367 ~ 199,729,433 ~ 8,882 , 141 

-21-
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( continued) 

$ 

~ 

Totals 
Reporting 

Entity 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

7,057,720 

663 ,7 36 

190,000 
llO, 000 

2,139,01 9 

6,961 , 33 5 
162,921 
127,742 

47,488 

450,000 
42,854 

300 
4ll, 429 

14,010,000 
2,414 ,190 

479,914 

835,000 
756 922 

36 , 860 ,57 0 

32 , 938,6 18 

63,295,784 

453 ,169 
1,093,826 

33,371,62 1 

10 , 253,157 
2,622,157 

1,059,999 
52 ,312 
81,989 

1,692 ,1 07 

24 , 836 , 265 

171 751 004 

208 , 6ll,574 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances -

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Protective services 
Facilities and environment 
Leisure services 
Non-program 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interes t and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (De ficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) : 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other 
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and 
Other Uses 

Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated 

Fund Balances, Ending 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 

General 

8,546,463 $ 

0 
716,754 

1,341,838 
5,490,619 

349,519 
505,331 

1,088,756 
18,039,280 

2,551,070 
9,222,611 
2,624,995 
4,746,189 

0 

0 

0 

0 

19,144,865 

(1,105,585) 

0 
3,045,273 

(132,021) 
2,913,252 

1,807,667 

5,159,203 

Special 
Revenue 

9,116,639 
143,948 

0 
7,910,802 

0 

0 
ll5,764 
535 950 

17,823,103 

684 , 349 
2,979,468 
7,417,759 

761,848 
0 

0 

0 
0 

ll,843,424 

5 979 679 

0 
471,599 

(6,409,296) 
(5 , 937 , 697) 

41,982 

22,005,660 

6,966,870 $ 22,047,642 

See notes t o financial statements. 
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Fund Tyees 

$ 

Debt 
Service 

3,956,572 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

61 052 
4,017 , 624 

17,158 
0 
0 
0 
0 

2,851,150 
899,085 

17 174 
3 784 567 

233 057 

105,919 

(31L 384 l 
(205 , 465) 

27 , 592 

1,722 , 442 

Capital 
Projects 

$ 0 $ 

0 
0 

1,933,677 
0 
0 

357,150 
326 681 

2 , 617,508 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

7,704 , 024 
7 704 024 

(5 , 086 , 516) 

2,000 , 000 
6 , 334 , 894 
3,401,109 
4,933,785 

(152,731) 

9 456 775 

$ L750,034 $ 9 , 304 , 044 $ 

Fiduciary 

Fund Tyee 

Expendable 
Trust 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

346 , 795 
0 

346 795 

176,461 
209,465 

0 
0 

177 

0 
0 
0 

386 , 103 

(39,308) 

0 
0 
0 

(39,308) 

486 715 

$ 

Totals 
Primary 

Government 

(Memorandum 
Only) 

21 , 619,674 
143,948 
716 , 754 

11,186,317 
5,490,619 

349,519 
1,325,040 
2 , 012 , 439 

42 , 844 , 310 

3,429,038 
12,411,544 
10,042,754 

5,508,037 
177 

2,851,150 
899,085 

7,721 ,1 98 
42,862,983 

(18,673) 

2,000,000 
9,957,685 

(10,253 , 810) 
1, 703,875 

1 , 685,202 

38,830 , 795 

447 407 $ 40,515 , 997 

-23-
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) -

All Governmental Fund Types 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

General Fund Special Revenue 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Protective services 
Facilities & environment 
Leisure services 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest & fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Budget 

$ 8 ,149,288 
0 

582,429 
2 ,097,479 
4,622,562 

354,500 
383,237 
523,500 

16 ,71 2 ,995 

3,176,953 
9,374,575 
4,543,973 
5,424,323 

0 
0 
0 

22 ,519,8 24 

{ 5,806,829) 

Actual 

$ 8,550,717 
0 

716,752 
1,234,309 
5,509,251 

345,816 
505,331 

1,056 r 003 
17,918,179 

2,549,453 
9,243,424 
2,614,689 
4,763,913 

0 
0 
0 

19,171,479 

1,253,300) 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 401,429 
0 

134, 323 
863 ,170 ) 
886,689 

8,684) 
122,094 
532,503 

1,205 , 184 

627,500 
131,151 

1,929,284 
660,410 

0 
0 
0 

3,348,345 

4,553,529 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from long-term 

debt 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues and Other 
Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and 
Other Uses 

Fund Balances, Beginning 

Fund Balances, Ending 

0 
2,986,609 

105,919) 

2,880,690 

2 ,926,139) 

5,179,700 

0 
2,979,967 

132,022) 

2,847,945 

1,594,645 

5,179,700 

0 
6,642) 

26,103) 

32,745) 

4,520,784 

0 

S 2,253,561 S 6,774,345 S 4,520,784 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Budget 

$ 8,836,329 
0 
0 

14,926,332 
0 
0 

1,096,503 
522, 112 

25,381,276 

1,178,744 
3,019,676 

24,462,369 
834,319 

0 
0 
0 

29,495,108 

4,113,832) 

0 
460,325 

7,283,548) 

6,823,223) 

(10,937,055) 

9,021,562 

Actual 

$ 8,877,919 
0 
0 

12,327,600 
0 
0 

1,065,764 
634,560 

22 ,905,843 

684,348 
2,947,227 
7,694,825 

762,284 

0 
0 
0 

12,088,684 

10,817,159 

0 
1,463,418 
6,157,867) 

4,694,449) 

6,122,710 

9,021,562 

S (1,915,493) $15,144,272 
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Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 41,590 
0 
0 

2,598,732) 
0 
0 

30,739) 
112 448 

2,475,433) 

494,396 
72,449 

16,767,544 
72,035 

0 
0 
0 

17,406,424 

14,930,991 

0 
1,003,093 
Ll25,681 

2,128,774 

17,059,765 

0 

$ 

Debt 

Budget 

4,022,977 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

4,022,977 

0 
0 
0 
0 

2,860,000 
883,101 
509 540 

4,252,641 

229,664) 

0 
105,919 
476,027) 

370,108) 

599,772) 

L 638,656 

$ 

Service Funds 

Actual 

3,956 , 885 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

47 124 
4,004,009 

0 
0 
0 
0 

2,924,122 
899,086 

34 332 
3,857,540 

14 6 4 69 

0 
105,919 
148,105) 

42,186) 

104,283 

1,638,656 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ ( 66,092) 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

47 124 
18,968) 

0 
0 
0 
0 

64,122) 
15,985) 

475 208 
395 101 

376 133 

0 
0 

327 922 

327 922 

704,055 

0 

$ 

Ca:gital Projects 

Budget 

0 
0 
0 

2,361,807 
223,920 

0 
2,763,866 

38 000 
5,387,593 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

54,872,672 
54,872,672 

49,485,079) 

2,000,000 
6,034,158 
2,293,303) 

5,740,855 

43,744,224) 

9,341,313 

$ 

Actual 

0 
0 
0 
0 

231,739 
0 

1,651,916 
319 753 

2,203,408 

0 
0 

· O 
0 

0 
0 

7,001,443 
7,001,443 

4,798,035) 

2,000,000 
6,341,305 
3,407,520) 

4,933,785 

135,750 

9,341,313 

EXHIBIT 3 

Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 0 
0 
0 

2,361,807) 
7,819 

0 
1,111,950) 

281 753 
3,184,185) 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

47,871,229 
47,871,229 

44,687,044 

0 
307,147 

1,114,217) 

807,070) 

43,879,974 

0 

$ 17,059,765 $ 1,038,884 $ 1,742,939 $ 704,055 $(34,402,911) $ 9,477,063 $ 43,879,974 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Retained Earnings/Fund Balances -

All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable Trust Funds, 
and Discretely Presented Component Unit 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for sales and services 
Other 
Investment earnings 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Employee expense 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies and services 
Insurance 
Landfill closure and postclosure care 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest revenue 
Interest expense 
Operating grants 
Taxes 
Loss on disposal of assets 
Bond issuance costs 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 

Operating Transfers: 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Operating Transfers 

Net Income (Loss) 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances, Beginning 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances, Ending 

Proprietary Fund Types 

Enterprise 

$ 11,255,897 $ 
435,859 

0 

11,691,756 

4,524,652 
886,420 

1,222,067 
2,492,922 

278,240 
0 

1,754,429 
11,158,730 

533,026 

496,614 
(305,697) 
455,855 
572,999 
(25,287) 
(1,193) 

1,193,291 

1,726,317 

192,725 
(188,600) 

4 125 

1,730,442 

23,492,030 

Internal 
Service 

4,042,993 
0 

0 

4,042,993 

1,042,320 
13,151 
15,281 

263,055 
2,723,993 

0 

10 730 
4,068,530 

(25,537) 

96,398 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

96 398 

70 861 

292,000 
0 

292 000 

362,861 

1,217,858 

$ 25,222,472 ..,$_=1..,,,..5..,B..,0 ... ,_7_1,..9_ 

See notes to financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT 4 

Com:eonen t Unit 
Totals . Dubuque Tota l s 

Fidu c iary P rimary Me trop olitan Rep ort ing 
Fund Ty:ee Gove r nment Ar ea Entity 

Non expendable (Memora ndum Sol i d Waste (Memorandum 
Tru st On ly) Agency Only) 

$ 0 $ 15 , 298 , 890 $ 2 , 705 , 457 $ 18 , 004 , 347 
3 , 792 439 , 65 1 4 , 104 443 , 755 
5 466 5 466 0 5 466 
9 258 15 , 744 , 007 2 , 709 , 561 18 , 453 , 568 

0 5 , 566 , 972 385 ,7 87 5, 952 , 7 5 9 
0 899 , 5 71 1 3 , 492 913 , 063 
0 1 , 237 , 348 69 , 396 1, 306 ,7 44 

11 ,1 41 2 , 767 ,11 8 787 ,1 93 3 ,554 , 311 
0 3 , 002 , 233 17 , 987 3 , 020 , 220 
0 0 51 ,538 51 ,538 
0 1 , 765,1 59 529 , 292 2 , 294 , 45 1 

11 1 41 15 , 238 , 40 1 1, 854 , 685 17 , 093 , 086 

(L 883) 505 606 854 876 L 360 , 482 

0 593 , 01 2 213 , 209 806 , 22 1 
0 (305 , 697) 0 (305 , 69 7 ) 
0 455 , 855 0 455 , 8 55 
0 572,999 0 572 , 999 
0 (25 , 287) 0 (25 , 287) 
0 (1 , 193) 0 (1 ,1 93 ) 
0 L 289 , 689 21 3 , 209 1, 502 , 898 

(1, 883) 1, 795 , 295 1, 068 , 085 2 , 863 , 380 

0 484 , 725 0 484 , 72 5 
0 (1 88 , 600) 0 (188 , 600) 
0 296 ,12 5 0 296 ,125 

(1, 883) 2 , 091 , 420 1, 068 , 085 3, 159 , 505 

83 872 24 , 793 , 760 7 047 340 31. 84 1. 1 00 

$ 81 989 $ 26 , 885 ,1 80 $ 8 ,11 5 , 425 $ 35 , 000 , 605 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Combined Stat ement of Cash Flows -
All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable Trust Funds, 

and Discretely Presented Component Unit 

For the fiscal year ended June 30 , 1996 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Landfill closure and postclosure care 
Depreciation 
Operating grants received 
Investment earnings 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) in intergovernmental 

receivable 
Decrease in due from primary government 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
I ncrease (decrease) in accrued payroll 
I ncrease (decrease) in accrued 

compensated absences 
Increase in intergovernmental payable 
Increase (decrease) in due to other fun ds 
(Decrease) in due to component unit 
(Decrease) in accounts payable from 

restricted assets 

Net cash provid~d (used) by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Property taxes received 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing 
activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing 
Activities: 

Acqu isition and construction of fixed assets 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Principal paid on bonds 
Interest paid on bonds 
Capital contributed by intergovernmental 

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing 
activities 
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Progrietar~ 

Entergrise 

533,026 

0 
1,754,429 

455,855 
0 

184 , 648 

450) 
0 

39,357) 
545,195) 

21,617) 

22,613) 
0 

213,711) 
10,533) 

98,728) 

1 975 754 

576,598 
192,725 
188,600) 

580 723 

1,985,859) 
3,000 

693 , 500) 
318,477) 

2 388 

2,992.448) 

Fund T~ges 

$ ( 

Internal 
Service 

25,537) 

0 
10,730 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

4,102 
221,529) 

1,586 

0 
0 

18,158 
0 

0 

212,490) 

0 
292,000 

0 

292 000 

6,671) 
0 
0 
0 
0 

6, 671 l 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 



EXHIBIT 5 

Component 
Unit 

Totals Dubuque Totals 
Fiduciary Primary Metropolitan Reporting 
Fund T:a2e Government Area Entity 

Nonexpendable (Memorandum Solid Waste (Memorandum 
Trust Only) Agency Only) 

$ ( 1,883) $ 505,606 $ 854 , 876 $ 1 , 360,482 

0 0 51,538 51,538 
0 1,765 , 159 529,292 2,294,451 
0 455,855 0 455,855 

5,466) 5,466) 0 5,466) 

0 184,648 11,559 196,207 

0 450) 0 450) 
0 0 10,533 10,533 
0 35,255) 0 35,255) 

484 766,240) 117 , 061 649,179) 
0 20,031) 321) 20,352) 

0 22 , 613) 2,305 20,308) 
0 0 45,187 45,187 
0 195,553) 0 195,553) 
0 10,533) 0 10,533) 

0 98,728) 0 98,728) 

6,865) L 756,399 1,622,030 3 378 429 

0 576,598 0 576,598 
0 484,725 0 484,725 
0 188,600) 0 188,600) 

0 872 723 0 872 723 

0 1,992,530) 534,506) 2,527,036) 
0 3,000 0 3,000 
0 693,500) 0 693,500) 
0 318,477) 0 318,477) 
0 2 388 0 2 388 

0 2,999,119) 534,506) 3,533,625) 

(continued) 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows -
All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable Trust Funds, 

and Discretely Presented Component Unit 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Progrietar;l Fund T:lJ2es 
Internal 

Entergrise Service 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on cash and pooled cash investments $ 503,430 $ 97,643 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 67,459 170,482 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year lL 600, 935 1,927,725 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 11 , 668 , 394 $ 2,098 , 207 

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing 
Activities: 

Contributions of fixed assets from 
developers and users $ 438, 911 $ 0 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Totals 
Fiduciary Primary 
Fund T::il2e Government 

Nonexpendable (Memorandum 
Trust Only) 

$ 5,328 $ 606,401 $ 

1,537) 236,404 

83 136 13. 611,796 

$ 81,599 $ 13,848,200 $ 

$ 0 $ 

Component 
Unit 

Dubuque 
Metropolitan 

Area 
Solid Waste 

Agency 

149,218 

1,236,742 

4,236,809 

5,473,551 

0 
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EXHIBIT 5 
(continued) 

Totals 
Reporting 

Entity 
(Memorandum 

Onlyl 

$ 755,619 

1,473,146 

17,848,605 

$ 19,321,751 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 1996 

The notes to the financial statements contain a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other notes considered necessary for an understanding 
of the financial statements of the City and are an integral part of this 
report. The index to the notes is as follows: 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

3. Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments 

4. Cash and Pooled Cash Investments - Overdraft 

5. Fixed Assets 

6. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

7. Long-Term Debt 

8. Contributed Capital 

9. Risk Management 

10. Segment Information - Enterprise Funds 

11. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

12. Deferred Compensation Plan 

13. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits 

14. Employee Retirement Systems 

15 . Industrial Development Revenue Bonds 

16. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 

17. Prior Period Adjustments 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 1996 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Dubuque, Iowa, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 
mayor and six-member council. As required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, these financial statements present the City and its component 
unit, an entity for which the City is considered to be financially 
accountable. The City has no blended component uni ts. The discretely 
presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the combined 
financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the City. The 
component unit has a June 30 year end. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit. The Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid 
Waste Agency has been organized as a joint venture under Chapter 28E of the 
Code of Iowa between the City of Dubuque and Dubuque County. The Agency's 
purpose is to provide solid waste management for the Dubuque metropolitan 
area. The City appoints a voting majority of the Agency's governing board 
and has authority over those persons responsible for the day-to-day 
operations of the Agency. The Agency is presented as a proprietary fund 
type. Complete financial statements for the Agency may be obtained from the 
City of Dubuque. 

City of Dubuque 
Finance Department 
13th & Central 
Dubuque, Iowa 52001 

Jointly Governed Organizations 

The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations for 
which the City is not financially accountable or that the nature and 
significance of the relationship wi th the City are such that exclusion does 
not cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
City officials are members of the following boards and commissions: 

City of Dubuque Conference Board 
Dubuque County E-911 Committee 
Dubuque Drug Task Force 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds and 
account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with 
a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funps according 
to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating 
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The 
minimum number of funds are maintained consistent with legal and managerial 
requirements. Account groups are a reporting device to account for certain 
assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in 
those funds. 
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The City has the following fund types and account groups: 

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's general government 
activities. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available") . 
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers 
property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year 
end. A one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all 
other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long­
term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and 
claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected 
to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest, and special assessments 
are susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at 
year end on behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. Other 
receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by 
the City and are recognized as revenue at that time. 

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or 
earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met . Expenditure-driven 
grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been 
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 

Governmental funds include the following fund types: 

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for 
all financial resources of the general government, except those required 
to be accounted for in another fund. 

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditure for specific purposes (not including expendable 
trusts or major capital projects). 

The debt service funds account for the servicing of general long-term debt 
not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. 

The capital projects funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or 
construction of major capital projects not being financed by proprietary 
or nonexpendable trust funds. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred. The City applies only the applicable FASB 
pronouncements issued prior to November 30, 1989, in accounting for and 
reporting its proprietary operations. Proprietary funds include the 
following fund types: 

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the 
City Council has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs 
incurred, and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. 

Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to 
other departments or agencies of the City or to other governments on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. 
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Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or 
as an agent on behalf of others. Trust funds account for assets held by the 
City under the terms of a formal trust agreement. 

The expendable trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same 
manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus 
and basis of accounting. Expendable trusts account for assets where both 
the principal and interest may be spent. 

The nonexpendable trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same 
manner as the proprietary funds, using the same measurement focus and 
basis of accounting. Nonexpendable trust funds account for assets of 
which the principal may not be spent. 

The agency funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of 
operations or have a measurement focus. The agency funds are accounted 
for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. These funds are used 
to account for assets that the City holds for others in an agency 
capacity . 

Account Groups . The general fixed assets account group is used to account 
for fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary or trust funds. The 
general long-term debt account group is used to account for general l ong-term 
debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of 
proprietary or trust funds. 

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity 

Deposits and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term i nvestments with o riginal maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition. 

State statute authorizes the City and the Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid 
Waste Agency to invest public funds in obligations of the United States 
government and its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or 
other evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions 
approved by the City Council and the Treasurer of the State of Iowa; prime 
eligible bankers acceptances; certain high-rated commercial paper; perfected 
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment 
companies; and certain joint investment trusts . 

Inv estments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for investments in 
the deferred compensation agency fund which are reported at market value . 

Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations , numerous transactions occur between 
individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables 
and payables are classified as "due to / from other funds." 

Property taxes are levied as of July 1 on property va lues assessed as of 
January 1, of the previous year. The tax levy is divided into two billings. 
The first billing is mailed on July 1 and the second billing is mailed on 
January 1. The billings are considered due upon receipt by the taxpayer; 
however, the actual due date is based on a period ending three months after 
the tax bill mailing. On these dates (September 30 and March 31), the bill 
becomes delinquent, and penalties and interest may be assessed by the 
government. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on July 1. 
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Inventory and Prepaid Items 

Inventory of materials and supplies in the enterprise funds is determined by 
actual count and priced on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. 

Inventory included in internal service funds is stated at the lower of cost 
( FIFO basis) or market and consists of consumable supplies. The cost of 
these supplies is recorded as an expense at the time they are removed from 
inventory for use. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting 
periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the City's enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as 
certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted 
assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. The "revenue bond operating" account is used to report resources 
set aside to subsidize potential deficiencies from the enterprise fund's 
operation that could adversely affect debt service payments. The "revenue 
bond sinking" account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt 
service payments over the next twelve months. The "revenue bond reserve" 
account is used to report resources set aside to make up potential future 
deficiencies in the revenue bond sinking account. 

Certain assets of the expendable trust funds are classified as restricted 
assets because their use is limited by the City's cable television franchise 
agreement. 

Certain assets of the Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency are 
classified as restricted assets because their use is restricted by state 
statute to certain specified uses. 

Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets that have been purchased with City funds are valued at cost 
where historical records are available and at estimated cost where no 
historical records exist. Assets acquired by gift are accounted for at the 
asset's fair value as of the date the property was received. 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund types of the City are recorded in the 
general fixed assets account group and are not depreciated. Interest 
incurred during construction is not capitalized. 

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and other assets that are immovable and of value only to the City) 
are not capitalized. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not included in the general 
fixed assets account group or capitalized in the proprietary funds. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in 
proprietary funds as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during 
construction is not capitalized. 
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Fixed assets are depreciated in the proprietary funds using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 

Compensated Absences 

50 years 
50 years 

4 - 20 years 

The City allows employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick 
pay benefits. Vacation pay is payable to employees upon retirement or 
termination. Sick pay is payable only upon retirement, in which event 
employees are paid for 25% of all eligible hours (50% in the case of police 
and fire employees). A liability has been recorded for all earned but unused 
vacation and sick pay benefits. 

Vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and 
reported as a fund liability. Amounts that are expected to be liquidated 
with expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure 
and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay them. Amounts 
not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources 
are reported in the general long-term debt account group. No expenditure is 
reported for these amounts. 

Long-Term Obligations 

The City reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the 
general long-term debt account group. Certain other governmental fund 
obligations not expected to be financed with current available financial 
resources are also reported in the general long-term debt account group. 
Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are 
reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds. 

For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs, are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported 
as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or discount. 
Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. For proprietary fund types, bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds 
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 
Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. 

Fund Equity 

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or 
are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Reservations of retained 
earnings are limited to outside third-party restrictions. The proprietary 
funds' contributed capital represents equity acquired through capital grants 
and capital contributions from developers, customers, or other funds. 

Memorandum Only--Total Columns 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as 
"memorandum only" because they do not represent consolidated financial 
information and are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The 
columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results 
of operations, or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of 
this data. 
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Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

Budgetary Information 

The Code of Iowa requires the adoption of an annual budget on or before March 
15 of each year which becomes effective July 1 and constitutes the 
appropriation for each program specified therein until amended. The legal 
level of control (the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations) is the program level for the City as a whole, rather than at 
the fund level. Appropriations as adopted and amended lapse at the end of 
the fiscal year. 

The City's budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. After the 
initial annual budget is adopted, it may be amended for specified purposes. 
Budget amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the 
original budget. Management is not authorized to amend the budget or to make 
budgetary transfers between programs without the approval of the City 
Council. Management may make budgeting transfers between funds as long as 
the transfers are within the same program. The City has adopted a policy 
relative to budgetary control and amendment which provides for control at the 
line-item level and review of the current year's budget at the time the next 
year's budget is prepared. This usually results in amending the 
appropriations of all programs to adjust to current conditions. Supplemental 
appropriations are only provided when unanticipated revenues or budget 
surpluses become available. 

The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, was amended twice during 
the year to allow the City to increase program expenditures by approximately 
$33,600,000, primarily for the carry-forward of unfinished capital 
improvement projects, expenditure of additional grants for capital 
improvements, and the expenditure of additional intergovernmental revenue for 
community development projects. 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods 
or services. Encumbrance accounting--under which purchase orders, contracts, 
and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to 
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation--is utilized in the 
governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as 
reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent 
year. 

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation 

The accompanying "Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - All Governmental 
Fund Types" presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual 
data on a budgetary basis for the general, special revenue, debt service, and 
capital projects fund types. Since accounting principles applied for 
purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from 
those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles, a reconciliation of resultant basis, timing, 
perspective, and entity differences in excess of revenues and other sources 
of financial resources over expenditures and other uses of financial 
resources for the year ended June 30, 1996, is presented as follows: 
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Excess of revenues 
and other sources 
over expenditures 
and other uses 
(budgetary basis} 

Adjustments: 
To adjust revenues 

for accruals 
To adjust 

expenditures 
for accruals 

Excess (deficiency} of 
revenues and other 
sources over (under} 
expenditures and 
other uses (GAAP 

General 
Special 
Revenue 

$ 1,594,645 $ 6,122,710 $ 

186,408 ( 5,082,740} 

26 614 997,988) 

Debt 
Service 

104,283 $ 

13,615 

90,306) 

Capital 
Projects 

135,750 

414,100 

702,581) 

basis} $ 1,807,667 $ 41.982 $ 27,592 $( 152,731) 

Deficit Fund Equity 

The following funds had deficit fund balance/retained earnings amounts as of 
June 30, 1996: 

Special Revenue: 
Trust and Agency 

Enterprise: 
Transit System 

Internal Service: 
General Service 
Stores/Printing 

$ ( 61,204} 

( 2,748,008) 

15,040} 
1,074} 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures with Budget (Cash Basis) 

Under Iowa law, cities are required to account for disbursements in terms of 
City government programs. The four City government programs are Policy and 
Administration (Administration}, Community Protection (Protective Services}, 
Home and Community Environment (Facilities and Environment}, and Human 
Development (Leisure Services}. The following table for the entire City, 
which includes the general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, 
enterprise, internal service, and trust funds, has been prepared to 
demonstrate legal compliance with that requirement: 

Program 

Administration 
Protective services 
Facilities and environment 
Leisure services 

Total 

Variance 
Actual Favorable 

Appropriations Disbursements (Unfavorable) 

$ 5,698,220 
12,757,609 
71,920,247 

7,306,276 

$97,682,352 
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$ 4,126,317 
12,567,675 
34,316,259 

6,377,272 

$57,387,523 

$1,571,903 
189,934 

37,603,988 
929,004 

$40,294,829 



Note 3. Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments 

Cash on Hand. Cash on hand represents undeposited collections together with 
authorized change funds and petty cash funds used for current operating 
purposes. The carrying amount at year end was $17,911. 

Deposits. At year end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was 
$13,019,533 and the bank balance was $13,203,030. Of the bank balance, 
$500,000 was covered by depository insurance. The balance was collateralized 
with securities or letters of credit held by the City or its agent in the 
City's name, or by a multiple financial institution collateral pool in 
accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for 
additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no 
loss of public funds. 

The carrying amount o f deposits for the Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid Waste 
Agency was $1,668,919 and the bank balance was $1,740,630. Of the bank 
balance, $200,000 was covered by depository insurance. The balance was 
collateralized with securities or letters of credit held by the Agency or its 
agent in the Agency's name, or by a multiple financial institution collateral 
pool in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. 

Investments. The City classifies its investments into categories which 
present an indication of the level of credit risk in relation to the nature 
of the investment and the custodial provisions. Category 1 records 
securities that are insured, registered, held by the City, or held by the 
City's agent in the City's name. Category 2 denotes uninsured and 
unregistered securities that are held by a counterparty's trust department or 
agent in the City's name. Category 3 specifies uninsured and unregistered 
securities that are held by a counterparty's trust department or agent in 
other than the City's name. 

The City's investments at June 30, 1996, are as follows: 

Categories Carrying Market 
1 2 3 Amount Value 

U.S. Treasury 
Securities $18,804,374 $ 0 $ 0 $18,804,374 $18,700,753 

Federal Agency 
Obligations 8,461,924 0 0 8,461,924 8,304,894 

Corporate Stock 7 088 0 0 7 088 58 345 

$27,273,386 $ 0 $ 0 27,273,386 27,063,992 

Investment Pools: 
Mutual U.S. Government Bond Fund 6,397,698 6,297,055 
Deferred Compensation Mutual Fund 6, 95L 505 6,95L505 

Total Investments $40,622,589 $40,312,552 

The Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency's investments at June 30, 
1996, are as follows: 

U.S . Treasury obligations 
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Carrying 
Amount 

Market 
Value 

$ 3,788,070 $ 3,788,022 
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A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the combined balance 
sheet for the primary government follows: 

Cash on hand 
Carrying amount of deposits 
Carrying amount of investments 

Total 

Cash and pooled cash investments 

$ 17,911 
13,019,533 
40.622.589 

$53,660.033 

Cash and pooled cash investments - nonexpendable trust 
Investments 

$45,476,339 
81,599 

6,951,505 
1,000 

1.149.590 
Insurance deposit 
Cash and pooled cash investments - restricted 

Total $53,660.033 

Note 4. Cash and Pooled Cash Investments - Overdraft 

When a fund overdraws its share of a pooled cash account, the overdraft is 
reported as an interfund payable in that fund. The offsetting interfund 
receivable has been reported in the General Fund. The difference between the 
General Fund's carrying amount of the cash pool and the equity displayed on 
the General Fund's balance sheet amounts to $127,742. 

Note 5. Fixed Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account 
group during the fiscal year: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, June 30, 

1995 Additions Retirements 1996 

Land $ 9,267,822 $ 0 $ 79,890 $ 9,187,932 
Buildings and 

improvements 35,609,897 261,084 80,000 35,790,981 
Improvements other 

than buildings 4,889,748 0 271,857 4,617,891 
Machinery and 

equipment 12,025,261 681,428 283,180 12,423,509 
Construction in 

progress 1,326.807 1,074.837 1.126.173 1.275.471 

Total General Fixed 
Assets $63. 119. 535 $ 2,017.349 $ 1.841.100 $63,295.784 

The following is a summary of proprietary fund type assets at June 30, 1996: 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets 

$ 

$ 
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Enterprise 
Funds 

1,151,521 
38,820,052 
13,821,277 
28,518,865 
11,263,527 
43,378.577) 

50.196.665 

Internal 
Service 

Funds 

$ 0 
0 
0 

142,338 
0 

103.373) 

$ 38.965 



The following is a summary of proprietary fund type fixed assets for the 
Dubuque Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency at June 30, 1996: 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in process 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets 

Note 6. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Due to/from other funds: 

Receivable Fund 

General 

Payable Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 
Trust and Agency 
Community Development 

Internal Service Funds 
Garage Service 
Stores/Printing 

Total 

$ 

$ 

552 , 528 
3,146,598 
1,381,261 

91,852 
2,104,748) 

3,067,491 

Amount 

$ 8,524 
90,693 

23,591 
4 934 

$ 127,742 

Due to/from primary government and component unit: 

Receivable Entity 

Component unit - Dubuque 
Metropolitan Area Solid 
Waste Agency 

Note 7. Long-term Debt 

Payable Entity 

Primary government - refuse 
collection fund 

Amount 

$ 47,488 

General Obligation Bonds. The City issues general obligation bonds to 
provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for general 
government. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and 
credit of the City. These bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with 
varying amounts of principal maturing annually and with interest payable 
semi-annually. General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 1996, are as 
follows: 

Amount Amount 
Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding 

Purgose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year 

Corporate purpose 03/01/87 05/01/88-05/01/01 4.40-5.60% $ 4,000,000 $ 2,475,000 
Corporate purpose 06/01/89 05/01/91-05/01/00 6.50-6.70 3,500,000 1,575,000 
Corporate purpose 05/15/90 05/01/91-05/01/00 6.50-6.80 1,965,000 945,000 
Corporate purpose 05/01/91 05/01/92-05/01/02 5.50-6.10 2,500,000 1,705,000 
Corporate purpose 06/01/93 05/01/94-05/01/03 2.65-4.50 4,615,000 3,090,000 
Corporate purpose 05/01/94 05/01/95-05/01/04 3.50-5.13 3,100,000 2,510,000 
Corporate purpose 07/01/95 05/01/96-05/01/05 4.10-4.90 2,000,000 1,900,000 

$21,680,000 $14,200,000 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds, 
including interest of $2,822,511, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 

2002-2005 

Total 

General Long-Term 
Debt Account Group 

$ 3,184,969 
2,936,464 
2,751,141 
2,216,361 
2,218,296 
3,715,280 

$17,022,511 

Tax-Increment Financing Bonds. The City issues tax-increment financing bonds 
to provide funds for urban renewal projects. The City pledges property tax 
revenues from the tax-increment financing districts to pay debt service. 
These bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with varying amounts of 
principal maturing annually and with interest payable semi-annually. Tax­
increment financing bonds outstanding at June 30, 1996, are as follows: 

Purpose 

Couler Valley 
Blue Moon 
Nordstrom 

Date of 
Issue 

Maturity 
Dates 

Interest 
Rates 

07/01/86 06/01/90-06/01/97 7.50 % $ 
08/08/90 08/01/91-08/01/96 8.00-8.75 
03/01/91 08/01/93-08/01/98 7.13-8.56 

Amount 
Originally 

Issued 

350,000 
1,200,000 
1.000,000 

Amount 
Outstanding 
End of Year 

$ 60,000 
250,000 
525,000 

$ 2,550,000 =$===8=3=5='=0=0=0= 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for tax-increment financing 
bonds, including interest of $82,174, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 

1997 
1998 
1999 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

537,354 
197,330 
182,490 

917,174 

Revenue Bonds. The City also issues bonds where the City pledges income 
derived from acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. These bonds 
generally are issued as serial bonds with varying amounts of principal 
maturing annually and with interest payable semi-annually. Revenue bonds 
outstanding at June 30, 1996, are as follows: 

Amount Amount 
Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding 

Purpose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year 

Water utility 07 /01/76 07/01/77-07/01/96 5.00-6.5% $ 5,700,000 $ 450,000 
Parking 

facilities 05/15/90 05/01/92-05/01/10 7.40-7.63 3,000,000 2,524,190 

$ 8,700,000 $ 2,974,190 

-43-



Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of 
$1,667,228, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 

2002 - 2010 

Total 

Amount 

$ 760,409 
301,019 
297,139 
297,889 
297,899 

2,687,063 

$ 4,641,418 

Notes Payable. Notes payable have been issued to provide funds for economic 
development and for golf course improvements and equipment. Notes payable at 
June 30, 1996, are as follows: 

Purpose 
Date of 

Issue 
Maturity 

Dates 
Interest 

Rates 

Amount 
Originally 

Issued 

Amount 
Outstanding 
End of Year 

Economic 
development 

Economic 
development 

Economic 
development 

04/02/84 05/15/89-05/15/98 

11/30/90 10/01/99 

11/09/94 11 /09/95 -11/09 /0 1 

None 

None 

None 

$ 

$ 

250,000 $ 

190,000 

200,000 

50,000 

190,000 

171 429 

640,000 =$===4=1~1~,=4~2~9= 

Debt service requirements to maturity on notes payable are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 Amount 

1997 $ 53,572 
1998 53,572 
1999 28 ,5 72 
2000 218,571 
2001 28,571 
2002 28 571 

Total $ 411,429 

Changes in Long-term Liabilities. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 
1996, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the general 
long-term debt account group: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, June 30, 

1995 Additions Reductions 1996 
Accrued Compensated 

Absences $ 637,386 $ 815,552 $ 0 $ 1,452,938 
Notes Payable -

Long-Term 296,250 200 , 000 84,821 411,429 
General Obligation 

Debt 12,975,000 2,000,000 2,385,000 12,590,000 
Tax-Increment 

Financing Debt L 310 , ooo 0 475 000 835,000 

Totals $15,218,636 $ 3,015,552 $ 2 ,944,8 21 $15,289,367 
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Note 8. Contributed Capital 

The changes in the City's contributed capital accounts for its enterprise 
funds were as follows: 

Sewage 
Disposal Water Refuse Transit 

Sources Works Utility Collection System 

Beginning balance contributed 
capital $24,442,279 $ 2,241,848 $ 336,354 $ 5,476,838 

Contributions received: 
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 2,388 
Developers and users 393.161 45 750 0 0 

Total contributions 
received 393,161 45 750 0 2 388 

Contributions made : 
Government 0 0 0 0 

Ending balance, contributed 
capital $24.835,440 $ 2,287.598 $ 336,354 $ 5.479.226 

Note 9. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural 
disasters for which the government carries commercial insurance and 
participates in a local government risk pool . 

The City has established a Heal th Insurance Reserve Fund for insuring 
benefits provided to City employees and covered dependents which is included 
in the Internal Service Fund Type . Health benefits were self-insured up to 
a specific stop loss amount of $50,000, and an aggregate stop loss of 
approximately $2,735,000 for 1996. Coverage from a private insurance company 
is maintained for losses in excess of the stop loss amount. All claims 
handling procedures are performed by a third-party claims administrator. 
Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon 
the claims administrator's estimate. Settled claims have not exceeded 
commercial coverage in any of the last three fiscal years. 

The City has established a Workers Compensation Reserve Fund for insuring 
benefits provided to City employees which is included in the Internal Service 
Fund Type . Workers' compensation benefits were self-insured up to a specific 
stop loss amount of $400,000, and an aggregate stop loss of $5,000,000 for 
1996. Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained for losses in 
excess of the stop loss amount. All claims handling procedures are performed 
by a third-party claims administrator. Incurred but not reported claims have 
been accrued as a liability based upon the claims administrator's estimate. 
Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the last three 
fiscal years. 

All funds of the City participate in both programs and make payments to the 
Health Insurance Reserve Fund and the Workers Compensation Reserve Fund based 
on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior- and current-year 
claims. The claims liability of $393,313 in the Health Insurance Reserve 
Fund and $149,683 in the Workers Compensation Reserve Fund are based on the 
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, 
which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior 
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements 
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated . 
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Changes in reported liabilities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1995 and 
1996, are summarized as follows: 

Liabilities at July 1, 1994 
Claim and changes in estimates 

during fiscal year 1995 
Claim payments 

Liabilities at June 30, 1995 
Claims and changes in estimates 

during fiscal year 1996 
Claim payments 

Liabilities at June 30, 1996 

$ 

$ 

Health 
Insurance 
Reserve 

Fund 

173,962 

1,740,519 
1,233,064) 

681,417 

1,902,143 
2,190,247) 

393,313 

Workers 
Compensation 

Reserve 
Fund 

$ 153,173 

154,045 
225,859) 

81,359 

314,601 
246,277) 

$ 149,683 

The City is a member in the Iowa Communities Assurance Pool, as allowed by 
Chapter 384.12 of the Code of Iowa. The Iowa Communities Assurance Pool 
(Pool) is a local government risk-sharing pool whose members include various 
governmental entities throughout the State of Iowa . The Pool was formed in 
August 1986 for the purpose of managing and funding third-party liability 
claims against its members. The Pool provides coverage and protection in the 
following categories: general liability, automobile liability, automobile 
physical damage, public officials liability, police professional liability, 
property and inland marine. There have been no reductions in insurance 
coverage from prior years. 

Each members' annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current 
operations and provide capital. Annual operating contributions are those 
amounts necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the Pool's general and 
administrative expenses, claims, claims expenses and reinsurance expenses due 
and payable in the current year , plus all or any portion of any deficiency in 
capital. Capital contributions are made during the first six years of 
membership and are maintained to equal 300 percent of the total current 
members' basis rates or to comply with the requirements of any applicable 
regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the Pool. 

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such coverage 
make annual operating contributions which are necessary to fund, on a cash 
basis, the Pool's general and administrative expenses and reinsurance 
premiums, all of which are due and payable in the current year, plus all or 
any portion of any deficiency in capital. Any year-end operating surplus is 
transferred to capital. Deficiencies in operations are offset by transfers 
from capital and, if insufficient, by the subsequent year's member 
contributions. 

The City's property and casualty contributions to the risk pool are recorded 
as expenditures from its operating funds at the time of payment to the risk 
pool. The City's annual contributions to the Pool for the year ended 
June 30, 1996, were $457,158. 

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements to reduce its 
exposure to large losses. The Pool retains general, automobile, police 
professional, and public officials ' liability risks up to $250,000 per claim. 
Claims exceeding $250,000 are reinsured in an amount not to exceed $1,750,000 
per claim and $5,000,000 in aggregate per year. For members requiring 
specific coverage from $2,000,000 to $7,000,000, such excess coverage is also 
reinsured. Automobile physical damage risks are retained by the Pool up to 
$50 ,000 each accident, each location, with excess coverage reinsured on an 
individual-member basis. All property risks are also reinsured on an 
individual-member basis. 
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The Pool's intergovernmental contract with its members provides that in the 
event a casualty claim or series of claims exceeds the amount of risk-sharing 
protection provided by the member's risk-sharing certificate, or in the event 
that a series of casualty claims exhausts total members' equity plus any 
reinsurance and any excess risk-sharing recoveries, then payment of such 
claims shall be the obligation of the respective individual member. The City 
does not report a liability for losses in excess of reinsurance or excess 
risk-sharing recoveries unless it is deemed probable that such losses have 
occurred and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Accordingly, at June 30, 1996, no liability has been rec-0rded in the City's 
financial statements. As of June 30, 1996, settled claims have not exceeded 
the risk pool or reinsurance company coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years. 

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less 
than one full year. After such period, a member who has given 60 days' prior 
written notice may withdraw from the Pool. Upon withdrawal, payments for all 
claims and claims expenses become the sole responsibility of the withdrawing 
member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred or reported prior to the 
member's withdrawal. Members withdrawing within the first six years of 
membership may receive a partial refund of their capital contributions. 
After the sixth year, the member is refunded 100 percent of its capital 
contributions, however, the refund is reduced by an amount equal to the 
annual operating contribution which the withdrawing member would have made 
for the one-year period following withdrawal and the member's proportionate 
share of any capital deficiency. 

Note 10. Segment Information - Enterprise Funds 

The City maintains five enterprise funds which provide sewage disposal, 
water, parking, refuse, and transit services. Selected financial information 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, is as follows: 

Sewage 
Disposal Water Parking 

Works Utility Facilities 

Operating revenues $ 4,626,031 $ 3,833,149 $ 1,087,111 
Depreciation expense 418,133 736,494 267,349 
Operating income 1,211,686 187,247 188,630 
Operating grants 0 0 0 
Operating transfers: 

In 0 188,600 0 
Out 118,600) 0 0 

Tax revenues 0 0 0 
Net income (loss) 1,336,425 431,408 53,680 
Current capital contributions 393,161 45,750 0 
Fixed assets: 

Additions 1,133,308 1,205,982 208,830 
Deletions 45,156 54,483 0 

Net working capital 6,099,594 2,444,216 146,956 
Total assets 29,237,123 21,055,082 7,886,975 
Bonds payable from 

operating revenues 1,160,000 900,000 2,524,190 
Total equity 27,869,184 20,018,455 5,273,183 
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Operating revenues 
Depreciation expense 
Operating income (loss) 
Operating grants 
Operating transfers: 

In 
Out 

Tax revenues 
Net income (loss) 
Current capital contributions 
Fixed assets: 

Additions 
Deletions 

Net working capital 
Total assets 
Bonds payable from operating 

revenues 
Total equity 

$ 

Refuse 
Collection 

1,923,030 $ 
121,684 
185,135 

0 

0 
70,000) 

0 
115,135 

0 

121,689 
45,008 

1,961,570 
2,376,438 

0 
2,269,050 

Note 11. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Grants 

Total 
Transit Enterprise 

System Funds 

222,435 $ 11,691,756 
210,769 1,754,429 

1,239,672) 533,026 
455,855 455,855 

4,125 192,725 
0 188,600) 

572,999 572,999 
206,206) 1,730,442 

2,388 441,299 

2,985 2,672,794 
69,820 214,467 

518,757 11,171,093 
2,821,887 63,377,505 

0 4,584,190 
2,731,218 58,161,090 

The City has received financial assistance from numerous federal and state 
agencies in the form of grants and entitlements. The disbursement of funds 
received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and 
conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the 
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could 
become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. However, 
in the opinion of management, liabilities resulting from disallowed claims, 
if any, will not have a material effect on the City's financial position as 
of June . 30, 1996. 

Litigation 

The City's corporation counsel reported that as of June 30, 1996, various 
claims and lawsuits were on file against the City. The corporation counsel 
estimated that all potential settlements against the City not covered by 
insurance would not materially affect the financial position of the City. 
The City has authority to levy additional taxes (outside the regular limit) 
to cover uninsured judgments against the City. 

Construction Contracts 

The City has recognized as a liability only that portion of construction 
contracts representing construction completed through June 30, 1996. The 
City has additional commitments for signed construction contracts of 
approximately $3,612,000 as of June 30, 1996. Of these commitments, 
approximately $1,948,000 will be funded by federal and state grants and 
$1,664,000 by cash reserves. 
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Note 12. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to 
all government employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary 
until future years. Participation in the plan is optional . The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, 
death, or unforeseeable emergency . All amounts of compensation deferred 
under the plan; all property and rights purchased with those amounts; and all 
income attributable to those amounts, property , or rights are (until paid or 
made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and 
rights of the City subject only to the claims of the City's general 
creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general 
creditors of the City in an amount equal to the fair market value of the 
deferred account for each participant . 

It is the opinion of the City's legal counsel that the City has no liability 
for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be 
required of an ordinary prudent investor. The City believes that it is 
unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general 
creditors in the future. 

Investments are managed by the plan's trustee under one of eight investment 
options, or a combination thereof. The choice of the investment option(s) is 
made by the participants. 

Note 13. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits 

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health 
care benefits for retired disabled police officers and firefighters as 
mandated by the Code of Iowa. The cost of health care benefits for retired 
disabled police officers and firefighters is recognized as an expenditure as 
claims are paid. As of June 30, 1996, 48 retirees were eligible for these 
benefits, and the cost of the benefits for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
1996, totaled $48,394. 

Note 14 . Employee Retirement Systems 

MFPRSI 

The City of Dubuque is a participating employer in the Municipal Fire and 
Police Retirement System of Iowa (MFPRSI). This single cost-sharing 
statewide multiple-employer fire and police retirement system is a defined 
benefit plan that covers members of the fire and police departments who have 
been appointed under civil service. 

This pension plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits in 
accordance with statutory eligibility requirements. Normal retirement is 
elective for members who have both attained the age of 55 and have completed 
22 years of service. Accidental death and disability benefits are available 
regardless of age attainment and length of service. These benefits are 
attributable to events sustained in the line of duty that result in death or 
permanent disability. Ordinary disability benefits are provided for 
permanent disability not incurred in line of duty. Though eligibility may be 
attained at any age, the benefit is less for service of less than 4 years . 
Alternatives exist for ordinary death benefits depending upon whether the 
member was or was not in service at the time of death and years of service. 
A reduced benefit (termination benefit) is available at age 55 for members 
who have completed at least 4 years of service upon termination of membership 
before age 55, or at least 4 years of service upon termination o f membership 
after age 55. 
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Benefit calculations are generally based upon the average of the highest 
three years of earnable compensation. The benefit allowance varies in 
accordance with the type of benefit and the eligibility for additional 
service credits. The plan provides that all benefits, except termination 
benefits, are subject to escalation as of July 1 and January 1 relative to 
pay increases granted to the fire and police department members on said 
dates. 

Since the plan is administered by the statewide system, the City's 
responsibility is limited to the payment of contributions due from the City 
and the active members of the fire and police departments. The statutory 
contribution rates were 17.66% for the employer and 9.35 % for the employees. 
Inasmuch as no ceiling limitation exists, the rates were applied against the 
entire amount of earnable compensation for the period. For the year ended 
June 30, 1996, the City contributed $1,113,118 and the employees contributed 
$589,335. The contributions were derived by applying the appropriate rates 
against earnable compensation of $6,303,048. The total City payroll was 
$19,508,250. The City's employer and employee contribution during the year 
ended June 30, 1996, represented 4.9 percent of total contributions of all 
participating entities. 

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the 
present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected 
salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the 
future as a result of employee service to date. The measure, which is the 
actuarial present value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help 
users assess MFPRSI's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess 
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and 
make comparisons among public employee retirement systems and among 
employers. MFPRSI does not make separate measurements of assets and pension 
benefit obligation for individual employers. At June 30, 1996, the pension 
benefit obligation for MFPRSI as a whole, determined through an actuarial 
valuation performed as of · that date, was approximately $961,206,000. 
MFPRSI's net assets available for benefits on that date valued at market were 
$845,418,000, leaving a pension benefit obligation in excess of available 
assets of $115,788,000. 

Historical trend information showing MFPRSI's progress in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in its annual report. 
MFPRSI does not invest in obligations of the State of Iowa or its political 
subdivisions. 

IPERS 

The City of Dubuque is a participating employer in the Iowa Public Employees' 
Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public 
employees retirement system designed as a supplement to Social Security. 

All employees, with certain exceptions, who do not participate in any other 
public retirement system in the State are eligible and must participate in 
IPERS. The pension plan provides retirement and death benefits which are 
established by State statute . Generally, a member may retire at age 65 or 
any time after age 62 with 30 years or more of service or when age plus years 
of service equals or exceeds 92, and receive unreduced (for age) benefits. 
Members may also retire at the age of 55 or more at reduced benefits. 
Benefits vest after four years of service or after attaining the age of 55. 
Full benefits are equal to sixty percent of the average of the highest three 
years of covered wages times years of service divided by 30. 
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The plan is administered by the State of Iowa and the City's responsibility 
is limited to payment of contributions. The contribution rates are 
actuarially determined, State statute requires contributions of 3.70 % by the 
employee and 5.75% by the employer. These rates are applied on the first 
$41,000 of compensation in calendar year 1995 and on the first $44,000 of 
compensation in calendar year 1996. The contribution paid by the City for 
the year ended June 30, 1996, totaled $657,720 and the contribution paid by 
employees totaled $423,228. The total payroll for employees covered by IPERS 
for the year ended June 30, 1996, was $11,438,603 and the total City payroll 
was $19,508,250. The City's employer and employee contributions during the 
year ended June 30, 1996, represented .32 percent of total contributions of 
all participating entities. 

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the 
present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected 
salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the 
future as a result of employee service to date. The measure, which is the 
actuarial present value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help 
users assess IPERS' funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress 
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make 
comparisons among public employee retirement systems and among employers. 
IPERS does not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit 
obligation for individual employers. At June 30, 1996, the pension benefit 
obligation for IPERS as a whole, determined through an actuarial valuation 
performed as of that date, was $9,000,849,494. IPERS' net assets available 
for benefits on that date valued at market were $9,587,104,982 leaving no 
unfunded pension benefit obligation. 

Historical trend information showing IPERS' progress in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in its annual report. 
IPERS does not invest in obligations of the State of Iowa or its political 
subdivisions. 

Note 15. Conduit Debt 

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide 
financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and 
construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the 
public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are 
payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon 
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the 
private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the 
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for 
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as 
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 

As of June 30, 1996, there were eleven series of Industrial Revenue Bonds 
outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of $23,677,509. 

During 1996 the Iowa Department of Economic Development (IDED) issued a 
$5,000,000 loan to a local industry which was passed through the City. The 
loan is to be repaid to IDED in one lump-sum payment twenty-four months after 
its issuance. This repayment is also to be passed through the City. Per the 
loan agreement, the City's liability for repayment of the loan is limited to 
any amounts collected from the company. The City is not responsible for 
repayment of the loan should the company default on its payment. 
Accordingly, no loan receivable or loan payable is reported in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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Note 16. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 

State and federal laws and regulat i ons require the Dubuque Metropolitan Area 
Solid Waste Agency to place a final cover on each cell of its landfill site 
when filled and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at 
the site for thirty years after closure. 

Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after 
the date that each cell stops accepting waste, the Agency reports a portion 
of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each 
period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The 
$ 4 7 9, 914 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at 
June 30, 1996, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the 
us~ of 100 percent of the capacity of cells 1 and 2 and 50 percent of the 
estimated capacity of cell 3. The Agency will recognize the remaining 
estimated c os t o f closure and postclosure care of $1,965,018 as the remaining 
estimated capacity is filled . 

These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and 
postclosure care in 1996. The Agency expects to close cell 3 in 2002 and to 
close the entire landfill in 2015. Actual cost may be higher due to 
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. 

Note 17. Prior Period Adjustments 

The beginning fund balance of the General Fund for the year ended June 30, 
1996, has been restated to correct the prior allocation of the liability for 
compensated absences between the General Fund and the General Long-Term Debt 
Account Group. 

Fund balance, July 1, 1995, as previously reported 

Prior period adjustment 

Fund balance, July 1, 1995, as restated 
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$ 4,442,270 

716 933 

$ 5,159,203 
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GENERAL FUND 

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated 
with government which are not required legally or by sound financial 
management to be accounted for in another fund. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and pooled cash investments 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Accounts 
Accrued interest 
Intergovernmental 

Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
GENERAL FUND 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Accrued compensated absences 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

-53-

EXHIBIT A-1 

$ 6,862,305 

75,385 
389,790 
269,074 
153,658 
127 742 

$ 7,8771954 

$ 105,999 
421,117 
329,537 

54 431 

911,084 

394,951 
6,571,919 

6,966,870 

$ 718771954 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
GENERAL FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Protective services 
Facilities and environment 
Leisure services 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over Expenditures and Other Uses 

Fund Balance, Beginning, as restated 

Fund Balance, Ending 
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$ 8,546,463 
716,754 

1 ,3 41 , 838 
5,490,619 

349,519 
505,331 

1,088,756 

18,039,280 

2,551,070 
9 ,222,611 
2,624,995 
4 , 746 ,18 9 

19,144,865 

(1,105,585) 

3,045,273 
(132,021) 

2 , 913 ,252 

1,807,667 

5,159,203 

$ 6 , 966,870 

EXHIBIT A-2 I 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are 
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes. 

Road Use Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for state revenues 
allocated to the City for maintenance and improvement of City streets. 

Trust and Agency Fund - This fund is used to account for pension and 
related employee benefit costs for those employees paid wages from the 
general fund. 

Community Development Fund - This fund is used to account for the use 
of Community Development Block Grant funds as received from the federal 
government. 

Section VIII Housing Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
operations of federal Section VIII existing, voucher, and mod rehab 
projects. 

Tort Liability Fund This fund is used to account for the 
administration and payment of damage claims against the City. 

Sales Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for local option sales 
tax revenues. 

Police and Fire Retirement Fund - This fund is used to account for 
property tax revenues received and employer contributions made to the 
Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa. 

Special Assessments Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
financing of public improvements that are deemed to benefit primarily 
the properties against which special assessments are levied and to 
accumulate monies for the payment of principal and interest on the 
outstanding long-term debt service . 
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ASSETS 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 

Road 
Use Tax 

Cash and pooled cash investments $ 4,194,591 $ 

Receivables: 
Taxes 0 
Special assessments 0 
Accrued interest 0 
Notes - current 0 
Notes - long-term 0 
Intergove rnmental 403 879 

Total Assets $ 4,598,470 $ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilitites: 
Accounts payable $ 47,697 $ 

Accrued payroll 26,784 

Accrued compensated absences 0 
Intergovernmental payable 0 

Due to other funds 0 

Deferred revenue 0 

Total Liabilities 74 481 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for long-term notes receivable 0 

Reserved for encumbrances 379,185 

Unreserved, undesignated 4,144,804 

Total Fund Balances 4,523,989 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 4,598,470 $ 
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Trust and Corrununity 
Agency Develo2ment 

0 $ 5,707,282 

I 37 , 877 0 
0 0 
0 386,991 
0 796,578 
0 10,224,834 
0 312,091 

37 877 $ 17,427,776 

1,496 $ 5,000,001 
61,712 1,484 

0 19,030 
0 0 

8,524 90,693 
27 349 0 

99 081 5,111,208 

0 10,224,834 
0 117,793 

(61,204) 1,973,941 

(61,204) 12,316,568 

37 877 $ 17,4 27 ,77 6 



EXHIBIT B- 1 

Police 
Sect ion VIII Tort and Fire Special 

Housing Liabi l ity Sales Tax Retirement Assessments Tota l 

$ 321 , 676 $ 78 $ 1 , 515 , 250 $ 1 , 492 , 485 $ 870,833 $ 14 ,1 02 ,1 95 

0 2 , 657 0 0 0 40 , 534 
0 0 0 0 371 , 632 371,632 
0 0 16 , 217 0 0 403 , 208 
0 0 0 0 0 796 , 578 

28 , 323 0 0 0 0 1 0 , 253 , 157 
20 605 0 1,129 , 219 0 0 1, 865 , 794 

$ 37 0 , 604 $ 2 735 $ 2 , 660 , 686 $ 1 , 492 , 485 $ 1 , 242 , 465 $ 27,833 , 098 

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 5 , 049 , 194 
0 0 0 0 0 89 , 980 

1 8 , 600 0 0 0 0 37 , 630 
117 , 734 0 0 0 0 117 , 734 

0 0 0 0 0 99 , 217 
0 1 91 9 0 0 362 , 433 39 1 7 01 

136 , 334 1 919 0 0 362 , 433 5 , 785 , 456 

28,323 0 0 0 0 10 , 253 ,1 57 
99 1 0 0 0 0 497 , 969 

204 , 956 81 6 2 , 660 , 686 1 , 492 , 485 880 032 11, 296 , 51 6 

234 270 816 2 , 660 , 686 1 , 492 , 485 880 , 032 22 , 047 , 642 

$ 370 , 604 $ 2 735 $ 2 , 660 , 686 $ 1,492 , 485 $ 1 , 242 , 465 $ 27 , 833 , 098 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures , and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Administration 
Protective services 
Facilities and environment 
Leisure services 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (De ficiency ) of Revenues 
Over (Under ) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operat ing transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Fund Balances, Beginning 

Road 
Use Tax 

$ 0 

0 
3,953,688 

0 

0 

3,953,688 

89 ,719 
539,691 

2,275,837 
0 

2 ,905, 247 

1,048,441 

0 

(331 , 000) 

(331 ,000) 

717,441 

3 , 806 ,54 8 

Trust and 
Agency 

$ 3,547,877 
0 

0 
0 

0 

3 547 877 

318,102 
2 , 439 ,777 

606,758 
647 101 

4,011,738 

(463,861) 

357,242 

(292,000) 

65 242 

(398,619) 

337 41 5 

$ 

Community 
Development 

0 

0 

778,859 
94,123 

387 129 

1,2 60 ,111 

276,528 
0 

1,405,107 
114 747 

1,796,382 

(536,271) 

112,405 

(188 , 511) 

(76 ,1 06) 

(612 , 377) 

12 , 928 , 945 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 4,523,989 $ (61,204) $ 12,316,568 
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Section VII I 
Housing 

$ 0 
0 

3 , 178 , 255 
21 , 64 1 

1 345 

3 , 201, 241 

0 
0 

3 ,1 30 , 057 
0 

3 , 130 , 057 

71 184 

0 
0 

0 

71, 184 

163 086 

$ 

Tort 
Liability 

250 , 513 
0 
0 
0 
0 

250 , 513 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

250 , 513 

1 , 952 
(251,4 29) 

(249 , 477) 

1 , 036 

(220) 

$ 

Sales Tax 

5 , 31 8 , 249 
0 
0 
0 

107 094 

5 , 425 , 343 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

5 , 425 , 343 

0 
(5 , 000 , 958) 

(5 , 000 , 958) 

424,385 

2 , 236 , 30 1 

Po l ice 
and Fire 

Retirement 

$ 0 $ 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
(345 , 398) 

(345 , 398) 

(345 , 398) 

1 , 837 , 883 

$ 234 , 270 ~$~~~~81=6~ $ 2 , 660 , 686 $ 1 , 492 , 485 $ 
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Special 
Assessments 

0 
143 , 948 

0 
0 

40 382 

184 330 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

1 84 , 330 

0 
0 

0 

184 , 330 

695 702 

$ 

EXHIBIT B- 2 

Total 

9,1 1 6 , 639 
143 , 948 

7 , 91 0 , 802 
11 5 , 764 
535 950 

17 , 823 , 103 

684 , 349 
2 , 979 , 468 
7 , 417,7 5 9 

761 848 

11, 843 , 424 

5 97 9 679 

471 , 599 

(6 , 409 , 296) 

(5 , 937 , 697) 

41,982 

22 , 005 , 660 

880 , 032 ~$~=2~2~,=0=4=7~,~64~2~ 



I 

l'i 

~ 

I 
I 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and 
payment of general obligation bond principal and interest from governmental 
resources and special assessment bond principal and interest from special 
assessment levies when the government is obligated in some manner for the 
payment. 

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the receipt of 
general property taxes used to pay general obligation long-term debt, 
court judgments, and other related costs. 

Tax Increment Fund - This fund is used to account for the receipt of 
property taxes and for the payment of the principal and interest costs 
on the tax increment financing districts' long-term debt service. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE , IOWA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30 , 1996 

ASSETS 

Debt 
Service 

Tax 
Increment 

EXHIBIT C- 1 

Total 

Cash and pooled cash investments 
Receivabl es: 

$ 395 , 656 $ 1 , 281 , 976 $ 1,677,632 

Taxes 
Accrued interest 
Notes - cur r ent 

Tota l Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Matured interest payable 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Bal ances : 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for debt service 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

31 , 564 
0 

50 000 

0 
13 , 928 

0 

31,564 
13 , 928 
50 000 

477 , 220 $ 1 , 295 , 904 $ 1,773 , 124 

300 $ 

22 790 

23 , 090 

0 

454 , 130 

454 , 130 

0 $ 

0 

0 

57 , 927 
1, 237 , 977 

1, 295 , 904 

300 
22 790 

23 090 

57,927 
1 , 692 , 107 

1 , 750 , 034 

477 , 220 $ 1 , 295,904 $ 1,773,124 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures : 
Current: 

Administration 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Fund Balances, Beginning 

Debt 
Service 

$ 3,022,190 $ 
4 811 

3,027,001 

2,025 

2,410,000 
757,101 

0 

3,169,126 

(142,125) 

105,919 
(78,630) 

27 289 

(114,836) 

568, 966 

Tax 
Increment 

934,382 
56 241 

990,623 

15,133 

441,150 
141,984 

17 174 

615,441 

375,182 

0 

(232,754) 

(232,754) 

142,428 

1,153,476 

EXHIBI T C-2 

Total 

$ 3,956,572 
61 052 

4,017,624 

17,158 

2,851,150 
899,085 

17 174 

3,784,567 

233 057 

105,919 
(311,384) 

(205,465) 

27 ,592 

1,722,442 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 454 ,130 $ 1, 295,904 $ 1,750,034 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital projects funds account for resources used for the acquisition of 
fixed assets and construction of major capital facilities other than those 
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds . 

Street Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
resources and costs related to street capital improvements. 

Storm Sewer Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
resources and costs related to storm sewer capital improvements. 

Dog Track Depreciation Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
resources and costs related to capital improvements and maintenance at 
the greyhound racing facility. 

General. Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
resources and costs related to non-assignable capital improvements. 

General. Obligation Bond Proceeds Fund - This fund is used to account 
for general obligation bond proceeds prior to their transfer to the 
respective construction fund. 

Airport Construction Fund ·- This fund is used to account for the 
resources and costs related to airport capital improvements. 

Sal.es Tax Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
resources and costs related to capital improvements financed through 
the local option sales tax. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and pooled cash investments 
Receivables: 

Accrued interest 
Intergov ernmental 

Total Assets 

CI TY OF DUBUQUE , IOWA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 

Street 
Construction 

$ 3,271,722 

35 , 015 
0 

$ 3 , 306 , 737 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities : 
Accounts payable $ 312,323 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 1,239 , 805 
Reserved for dog track 0 
Unreserved, undesignated 1 , 754 , 609 

Total Fund Balances 2 , 994 , 414 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 3,306,737 
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Storm Sewer Dog Track 
Construction De12reciation 

$ 617,983 $ 1 , 048 , 775 

6,614 11,224 
0 0 

$ 624 597 $ 1 , 059 , 999 

$ 0 $ 0 

15,800 0 
0 1 , 059 , 999 

608 797 0 

624 597 1,059,999 

$ 624 597 $ 1 , 059 , 999 

I 



EXHIB I T D- 1 

Gen eral 
Genera l Obl i gat i on Airport Sales Tax 

Construction Bond Proce eds Construc tion Construct i on Tota l 

$ 1 , 300 , 632 $ 899 , 086 $ 364 , 444 $ 1 , 974 , 423 $ 9 , 477 , 065 

898 0 3 , 90 1 21,131 78 , 783 
0 0 757 883 0 757 883 

$ 1 , 30 1 ,530 $ 899 , 086 $ 1 ,126 , 228 $ 1 1995 , 554 $ 1 0 , 313 , 731 

$ 0 $ 0 $ 622 , 829 $ 74 535 $ 1, 009 , 687 

120 0 15 , 541 400 , 044 1, 67 1, 310 
0 0 0 0 1, 059 , 999 

1 , 301, 410 899 086 487 858 1 , 520 , 975 6 , 572 , 735 

L 301 , 530 899 086 503 399 1 , 92 1, 019 9 , 304 , 044 

$ 1 , 301 , 530 $ 899 , 086 $ 1,126 , 228 $ 1 , 995 , 554 $ 10 , 313, 73 1 

· I 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Street Storm Sewer 
Construction Construction 

Revenues: 
Intergovenmental $ 0 $ 0 
Miscellaneous 14,101 0 
Racing Association 0 0 
Passenger facility charges 0 0 
Interest 129 643 33 224 

Total Revenues 1 43 , 744 33,224 

Expenditures: 
Capital out lay 4,378,157 149 493 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (4,234,413) (116,269) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from long-term debt 0 
Operating transfers in 4,273,442 437,226 
Operating transfers out 0 0 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4,273,442 437 226 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over (Under) 

Expenditures and Other Uses 39,029 320 ,957 

Fund Balances, Beginning 2 ,955,385 303 640 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 2,994,414 $ 624,597 
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Dog Track 
De12reciation I 

$ 0 
80,732 

120,000 
0 

51 060 

251 ,792 

62 362 

189 430 

0 
0 
0 

0 

189, 430 

870 569 

$ 1,059,999 

I 



Genera l 
Construct i on 

$ 0 
30 , 578 
1 5 , 000 

0 
4 11 3 

49 , 691 

69 4 60 

(1 9 , 769) 

269 , 655 
0 

269 65 5 

249 , 886 

1, 051, 644 

Gene r al 
Ob l igation 

Bond Proceeds 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

32 1 89 

(32 , 189) 

2,000 , 000 
0 

(3 , 273 , 609) 

(1, 273 , 609) 

(1 ,30 5 ,798) 

2 , 204 , 884 

$ 

$ 1, 301,530 $ 899 , 086 $ 

EXHIB IT D-2 

Airport Sa les Tax 
Cons truct i on Construct ion Total 

1,933 , 677 $ 0 $ 1 , 933 , 67 7 
0 0 1 25 , 411 
0 0 135 , 000 

96 , 739 0 96 , 739 
8 236 10 0 405 326 , 68 1 

2,038,652 100 , 405 2,61 7 , 508 

2 , 045 , 834 966 529 7 704 024 

(7 I 1 82) (866 ,1 2 4 ) (5, 086 ,51 6) 

0 0 2 , 000 , 000 
287 , 441 1 ,067 , 130 6,334,894 

0 (1 27 ,500 ) 3 , 401,109 

287 441 939 630 4 , 933 , 785 

280 , 259 73 , 506 (152 , 73 1 ) 

223 140 1, 84 7, 51 3 9 45 6 775 

503 , 399 $ 1, 92 1, 01 9 $ 9 , 304 , 044 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -- where the 
intent of the government's council is that the costs of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or where the government's 
council has decided that periodic determination of net income is 
appropriate for accountability purposes. 

Sewage Disposal Works Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
operations of the City's sewage disposal works and services. 

Water Utility Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of 
the City's water facilities and services. 

Parking Facilities 
operations of the 
facilities. 

Fund This 
City-owned 

fund is used 
parking ramps 

to account 
and other 

for the 
parking 

Refuse Collection Fund This fund is used to account for the 
operations of the City's refuse collection services. 

Transit System Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations 
of the City's bus and other transit services . 
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Current Assets: 
Cash and pooled cash investments 
Receivables : 

Property taxes 
Accounts 
Accrued interest 
Intergovern..~ental 

Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash and pooled cash investments 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total Restricted Assets 

Deferred Charges 

Fixed Assets: 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets 

Total Assets 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, I OWA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30 , 1996 

ASSETS 

$ 

Sewage 
Disposal 

Works 

5,890,078 

0 
489,381 

63,037 
0 
0 

5 037 

6,447 , 533 

0 
0 

0 

0 

60,440 
22,400,143 
13,821,277 

1,692,388 
10,906,982 

(26,091,640) 

22,789,590 

$ 

Water 
Utility 

1,913,573 

0 
444,294 

25,415 
0 

236,311 
0 

2,619,593 

461,250 
0 

461 250 

0 

144,066 
5,792,403 

0 
22,902,501 

252,513 
(11,117,244) 

17,974,239 

$ 29,237 I 123 $ 21,055,082 
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$ 

Pa rking 
Fac i liti e s 

316 , 074 

0 
5 ,17 4 
3 , 706 

0 
0 
0 

324 954 

626 ,1 98 
6 378 

632 576 

16 550 

911, 015 
8 , 719 ,538 

0 
459 ,570 
1 04 , 032 

(3 , 28 1, 260) 

6 , 912 , 895 

$ 

7 , 886 , 975 $ 

Re fu se 
Collect i on 

1, 867 ,121 

0 
2 01,837 

0 
0 
0 
0 

2 , 068,958 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

965 ,000 
0 

(657 , 52 0 ) 

307 480 

$ 

2 , 376 , 438 $ 

Transit 
System 

594 , 100 

6 ,11 3 
324 

0 
2 ,1 69 
6 , 720 

0 

609 426 

0 
0 

0 

0 

36 , 000 
1, 907 , 968 

0 
2 , 499 , 406 

0 
(2 , 230 , 913) 

2 , 212 , 461 

To t al 

$ 1 0 , 580 , 946 

6, 11 3 
1,1 41 ,010 

92 , 158 
2,169 

243 , 03 1 
5 03 7 

12 , 07 0 , 464 

1,087 , 448 
6 37 8 

1, 093 , 826 

1 6 550 

1, 151,52 1 
38 , 8 2 0 , 052 
13 , 821, 2 77 
28 ,518 , 86 5 
11, 263 , 52 7 

(43 , 378 ,577) 

50 , 196 , 665 

2 , 82 1, 887 =$~_6_3='=3_7=7~, 5~0~5,== 
(continued) 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 3 0, 19 96 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

General obligation bonds payable - current 
Revenue bonds payable - current 
Accrued compensated absences 
Due to component unit 

Total Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: 
Revenue bonds payable 
Accrued interest payable 

Total Current Liabilities Payable from 
Restricted Assets 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
General obligation bonds payable 
Revenue bonds payable 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity: 
Contributed Capital: 

Goverrunent 
Intergoverrunental 
Developers and users 

Total Contributed Capital 

Retained Earnings: 
Reserved by bond ordinance 
Unreserved 

Total Retained Earnings 

Total Equity 

$ 

Sewage 
Disposal 

Works 

90,954 $ 
30,496 

140,000 
0 

86,489 
0 

347 939 

0 

0 

0 

1,020,000 
0 

1,020 ,0 00 

1,367,939 

3,430,836 
11,943,895 

9,460,709 

24,835,440 

0 

3,033,744 

3,033,744 

27 ,86 9,1 84 

Water 
Utility 

13,093 
39,273 
50,000 

0 
73,011 

0 

175 377 

450,000 
11 250 

461,250 

400,000 
0 

400 000 

1,036 ,627 

0 

0 

2,287,598 

2,287,598 

461,250 
17,269,607 

17,730,857 

20 ,018,455 

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 2 9 , 2 3 7 , 12 3 ""$=,;;;2~1.!:, .;;.0;;;;.5 5=,6 0~8;,;2;.., 
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$ 

$ 

Parking 
Facilit i es 

1 7,224 
9 , 025 

0 
110 , 000 

31 , 749 
0 

167 998 

0 
31 604 

31 604 

0 
2 , 414 ,1 90 

2 , 414 , 190 

2,613 , 792 

0 
0 
0 

0 

632,576 
4 , 640 , 607 

5 , 273 , 183 

5 , 273 , 183 

7 , 886 , 975 

$ 

$ 

Refuse 
Col l ection 

508 
19 , 574 

0 
0 

39 , 818 
47 488 

107 388 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

107 388 

61 , 704 
274,650 

0 

336 354 

0 

1, 932 I 696 

1 , 932 , 696 

2,269,050 

21376 , 438 

$ 

$ 

Transit 
System 

30 , 153 
18 , 339 

0 
0 

42 , 177 
0 

90 669 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

90 669 

1 , 400 , 280 
4 , 078 , 946 

0 

5 , 479 , 226 

0 
(2 , 748 , 008) 

(2 , 748 , 008) 

2 , 731,218 

2,821 , 887 

$ 

$ 

Total 

151 , 932 
116,707 
1 90 , 000 
110 , 000 
273,244 

47 488 

889 371 

450,000 
42 854 

4 92 854 

1 , 420 , 000 

2 , 414 , 190 

3 , 834 , 190 

5 , 216 , 415 

4 , 892 , 820 
16,297 , 491 
11 , 748 , .307 

32 , 938 , 618 

1 ,093,826 
24 ,128 , 646 

25 , 222,472 

58 , 161,090 

63 , 377 , 505 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE , IOWA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Retained Earnings 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for sales and services 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Employee expense 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies and services 
Insurance 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest revenue 
Interest expense 
Operating grants 
Taxes 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 
Bond issuance costs 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Operat ing Transfers 

Operating Transfers: 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total Operating Transfers 

Net Income (Loss) 

Retained Earnings, Beginning 

$ 

Sewage 
Disposal 

Works 

4,464,335 $ 
161 696 

4,626,031 

1,252,879 
431,388 
258,516 
966,961 
86,468 

418 133 

3,414,345 

L 211,686 

311,803 
(60,842) 

0 

0 

(7 ,622 ) 
0 

243 339 

1,455,025 

0 

(118,600} 

(118,600} 

1,336,425 

1,697 ,319 

Water 
Utility 

3,592,001 
241 14 8 

3,833,149 

1,336,823 
365 ,896 
117,923 

1,034,494 
54,272 

736 494 

3,645,902 

187 247 

120,115 
(46,402) 

0 
0 

(18 ,152 ) 
0 

55 561 

242 808 

188,600 
0 

18 8 600 

431,408 

17,299,449 

Retained Earnings, Ending $ 3 ,033,744 =$~====1=7~,~7~30~,=8~5=7~ 
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EXHIBIT E-2 

Parking Refuse Transit 
Facilities Collection System Total 

$ 1,082,332 $ 1,919,282 $ 197 , 947 $ 11,255,897 
4 779 3 748 24 488 435 859 

1,087,111 1, 923, 030 222 435 11,691,756 

389,670 791,748 753,532 4,524 , 652 
48,166 326 40,644 886 , 420 
22 , 073 733,162 90,393 1 , 222 , 067 

154,491 64,272 272,704 2,492 , 922 
16,732 26,703 94,065 278 , 240 

267 349 121 684 210 769 1 , 754,429 

898 481 1,737,895 1,462,107 11,158,730 

188,630 185 135 (1,239,672) 533 026 

64,696 0 0 496,614 
(198 , 453) 0 0 (305,697) 

0 0 455,855· 455,855 
0 0 572,999 · 572,999 
0 487 (25,287) 

(1,193) 0 0 (1,193) 

(134 , 950) 0 1,029 , 341 1,193,291 

53 680 185 135 (210 , 331) 1,726 , 317 

0 0 4,125 • 192,725 
0 (70,000) 0 (188 , 600) 

0 (70,000) 4 125 4 125 

53,680 115,135 (206,206) 1,730,442 

5,219 , 503 1,817,561 (2,541,802) 23,492,030 

$ 5,273,183 $ 1 , 932,696 $ (21748, 008) $ 25,222 , 472 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE , IOWA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Operat ing grants received 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) in intergovernmental 

receivable 
(Increase) in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in acc r ued payroll 
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated 

absences 
(Decrease) in due to other funds 
(Decrease) in due to component unit 
(Decrease) in accounts payable from 

restricted assets 

Net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Property taxes received 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing 
Activities: 

Acquisition and construction of fixed 
assets 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Principal paid on bonds 
Interest paid on bonds 
Capital contributed by intergovernmental 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
related financing activities 

-71-

$ 

Sewage 
Disposal 

Works 

1,211,686 $ 

418,133 
0 

34,939 

0 
0 

421,340) 
15,645) 

17,459) 
0 
0 

0 

1,210.314 

0 
0 

118,600) 

118. 600) 

897,518) 
0 

140,000) 
62,146) 

0 

1. 099. 664) 

Water 
Utility 

1 87,247 

736,494 
0 

106,647 

0 
37 ,155) 
47,300) 

353) 

437 
0 
0 

98. 728) 

847 289 

0 
188,600 

0 

188 600 

678,039) 
0 

450,000) 
56,402) 

0 

1,1 84 ,441) 

I I 

I 

I 

I 



$ 

I 

Parking 
Facilities 

188,630 $ 

267,349 
0 

1,275 

0 
0 

15,133 
3,149) 

6,523 
213,711) 

0 

0 

262 ,050 

0 
0 
0 

0 

285,626) 
0 

103,500) 
199,929) 

0 

589,055) 

Refuse 
Collection 

Transit 
System 

EXHIBIT E-3 

Total 

185,135 $( 1,239,672) $ 533,026 

121 , 684 210,769 1,754,429 
0 455,855 455,855 

41,442 345 184,648 

0 450) 450) 
0 2,202) 39,357) 

98,919) 7,231 545 , 195) 
323 2,793) 21,617) 

10,375) 1,739) 22,613) 
0 0 213,711) 

10,533) 0 10,533) 

0 0 98,728) 

228 757 572,656) 1 97 5 7 54 

0 576,598 576,598 
0 4,125 192,725 

70,000) 0 188,600) 

70,000) 580 723 580 723 

121,690) 2,986) 1,985,859) 
0 3,000 3,000 
0 0 693,500) 
0 0 318,477) 
0 2 388 2 388 

121. 690) 2 402 2,992,448) 

(continued) 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Sewage 
Disposal 

Works 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on cash and pooled cash investments 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing 
Activities: 

$ 314,921 

306,971 

5.583,107 

$ 5,890.078 

$ 

$ 

Contributions of fixed assets from 
developers and users $ 393,161 $ 

-73-

Water 
Utility 

122,437 

26,115) 

2.400,938 

2.374,823 

45,750 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 



$ 

$ 

$ 

Parking 
Facilities 

66,072 

260,933) 

0 $ 

Refuse 
Collection 

0 

37,067 

1,867,121 $ 

0 $ 

Transit 
System 

EXHIBIT E-3 
(continued) 

Total 

o .... s __ -=5-=-o=3 ..... , ..a.4=3-=-o-

10,469 67 ,45 9 

583 631 11,600 r 935 

0 

-74-
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or 
services provided by one department to other departments of the government 
and to other government units on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

General Service Fund - This fund is used to account for engineering, 
street, and general services supplied to other departments. 

Garage Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the maintenance 
and repair services for the City's automotive equipment. 

Stores/Printing Fund - This fund is used to account for printing, 
supplies, and other services provided to other departments. 

Health Insurance Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
health insurance costs of the City. 

Workers' Compensation Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for 
the workers' compensation costs of the City. 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
I NTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

General Garage 

Cash Flows from Operating Activi ties: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconci l e operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Deprec i ation 
Changes i n assets and l iabilities : 

Decrease in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating transfers in 

Cash Fl ows from Capital and Related Financing 
Act i vities: 

Acquis i tion and construction of fixed assets 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
I nterest on cash and pool ed cash investments 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equiva l ents at end of year 

-7 9-

Service Service 

$ 3,243 $( 38,609) 

0 

0 
0 

3 , 243) 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

10,730 

2,440 
1 , 299) 
4 , 829 

23 591 

1 682 

0 

6. 67 1 l 

0 

4, 989) 

4 989 

0 

I I 

I 
I 
I ! 

I 

I 

I 

t 

J 

I 

l 

I I 



$ 

Stores/ 
Printing 

3,771 $ 

0 

1,662 
0 
0 

5,433) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 $ 

Health 
Insurance 
Reserve 

Workers 
Compensation 

Reserve 

EXHIBIT F-3 

Total 

45,752 $( 39,694) $( 25,537) 

0 

0 
288,104) 

0 
0 

242,352) 

0 

0 

78 236 

164,116) 

L 541,644 

1,377,528 $ 

0 

0 
67,874 

0 
0 

28 180 

292 000 

0 

19 407 

339,587 

381 092 

10,730 

4,102 
221,529) 

1,586 
18 158 

212,490) 

292 000 

6,671 l 

97 643 

170,482 

1,927,725 

720,679 =$===2='=0=9=8='=2=0=7= 
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the government in a 
trustee capacity. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the 
government as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governments, and/or other funds. 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FONDS 

Cable TV Fund - This fund is used .to account for the monies and related 
costs as set forth in the cable franchise agreement between the City of 
Dubuque and the cable franchisee . 

Respiratory Disease Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
monies and related costs as agreed to by the City of Dubuque and the 
Dubuque Tuberculosis Association. 

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FONDS 

Ella Lyons Peony Trail Trust Fund - This fund is used for dividends and 
maintenance cost related to the City Peony Trail, per trust agreement. 

Library Gifts Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for testamentary 
gifts to the City library . 

AGENCY FONDS 

Deferred Compensation Fund This fund is 
accumulation and disbursement of deferred 
compensation plan between the City of Dubuque 
Management Association Retirement Corporation . 

used to account for the 
wages under a deferred 

and the International City 

Flexible Spending Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation 
and disbursement of Internal Revenue Service Section 125 flexible spending 
health care and child care accounts. Pre-tax contributions are made by 
employees and qualified expenditures from the fund are made through a 
third party administrator. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 

Expendable 
Trust 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

ASSETS 

Cash and pooled cash investments 
Investments 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Accrued interest 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and pooled cash investments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Due to employees 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved by franchise agreement 
Reserved for endowments 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

677,989 $ 
0 

16,201 
0 

52 312 

81 ,5 99 
0 

0 
874 

0 

746,502 =$~~=8=2~,=4=7=3~ 

2 ,0 82 $ 
9,013 

0 

288,000 

299,095 

7,269 
81,872 

0 

358,266 

447 407 

484 
0 

0 

0 

484 

0 

0 

81 , 989 
0 

81 989 

746,502 =$~~=8=2=64=7=3~ 

I 

I 

I 



EXHIBIT G-1 

Agency Totals 

$ 0 $ 759 , 588 
6,951,505 6,951,505 

0 16,201 
0 874 

9 830 62 142 

$ 61 9611 335 $ 717901310 

$ 0 $ 2 , 566 
0 9 , 013 

6,961,335 6,961,335 
0 2881000 

6 1 9611335 712601914 

0 7,269 
0 81,872 
0 81,989 
0 3581266 

0 5291 396 

$ 6 1 9611 335 $ 71790 1310 

-82-



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 

Cable TV 
ASSETS 

Respiratory 
Disease 
Trust 

Cash and pooled cash investments 
Accounts receivable 

$ 673,573 $ 
16,201 

4,416 $ 
0 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and pooled cash investments 52,312 0 

EXHIBIT G- 2 

Total 

677,989 
16,201 

52,312 

Total Assets $ 742,086 $ 4 4 16 =$==7==4=6==''=5=0=2== 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved by franchise agreement · 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 
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$ 

$ 

2,082 $ 
9,013 

288,000 

299,095 

52,312 
390 679 

442,991 

742,086 $ 

0 $ 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4 416 

4 416 

2,082 
9,013 

288,000 

299,095 

52,312 
395,095 

447 407 

4,416 -$==7_4=6-'=5=0=2= 

I 

I 

I 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Respiratory 
Disease 

Cable TV Trust 

Revenues: 
Franchise fees $ 346,761 $ 0 

Miscellaneous 34 0 

Total Revenues 346 795 0 

Expenditures: 
Administration 176,461 0 

Protective services 209 ,465 0 

Non-program 0 177 

Total Expenditures 385,926 177 

Deficiency of Revenues 
Under Expenditures (39 ,131 ) (177) 

Fund Balances, Beginning 482,122 4 593 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 442,991 $ 4 416 

- 84-

EXHIBIT G-3 

Tota l 

$ 346,761 
34 

346 795 

176,461 
209,465 

177 

386,103 

(39,308) 

486 715 

$ 447 407 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 

Ella Lyons 
Peony Trail 

Trust 
ASSETS 

Cash and pooled cash investments 
Accrued interest receivable 

$ 20,081 $ 

216 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for endowments 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 
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$ 20,297 $ 

$ 0 $ 

20 297 

$ 20,297 $ 

Library 
Gifts 
Trust 

61,518 $ 

658 

EXHIBIT G- 4 

Total 

81 ,5 99 
874 

I 

62,176 ~$~~=8=2-'=4=7_3_ 

484 $ 484 

61 692 8 1 989 

62 176 $ 82 , 47::;., 

I 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

Ella Lyons Library 
Peony Trail Gifts 

Trust Trust 
Operating Revenues: 

Miscellaneous $ 0 $ 3,792 
Investment earnings 2 197 3 2 69 

Total Operating Revenues 2 ,1 97 7,061 

Operating Expenses: 
Supplies and services 2 068 9 073 

Net Income (Loss) 129 (2,012) 

Fund Balances, Beginning 20 1 68 63 704 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 20 £2 97 $ 61£692 

-86-

EXHIBIT G-5 

Total 

$ 3 ,7 92 
5 4 66 

9,258 

11 1 41 

(1 , 883) 

83 872 

$ 81 £989 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Ella Lyons Library 
Peony Trail Gifts 

Trust Trust 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 129 $ ( 2 , 012) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash (used) by operating 
activities: 

Investment earnings 2,197) 3,269) 
Changes in assets and liabi l ities: 

Increase in accounts payable 0 484 

Net cash (used) by operating activities 2,068) 4,797) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on cash and pooled cash 

investments 1 981 3 347 

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 87) 1,450) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
of year 20 168 62 968 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 20,081 s 61,518 

-87-

EXHIBIT G- 6 

I 

Total 

$( 1,883) 
I 

5,466) 

484 

6,865) 

5 328 

1 , 537) 

83 136 

s 81,599 

I 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 
ALL AGENCY FUNDS 

EXHIBIT G-7 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Deferred Compensation 

ASSETS 

Investments 

LIABILITIES 

Due to employees 

Flexible Spending 

Restricted cash and 
pooled cash investments 

Due to employees 

Totals 

ASSETS 

Investments 
Restricted cash and 
pooled cash investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to employees 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
July 1 

1995 

5,816,043 $ 

5,816,043 $ 

0 $ 

0 $ 

5,816,043 $ 

0 

5,816.043 $ 

5,816,043 $ 
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Net 
Additions 

1, -340. 859 $ 

1,340,859 $ 

89,286 $ 

89 , 286 $ 

1,340,859 $ 

89 286 

L 430,145 $ 

1,430,145 $ 

Balance 
Net June 30 

Deductions 1996 

205 ,397 $ 6. 951. 505 

205 .397 $ 6,951.505 

79,456 ~$=======9=·~8~3~0= 

79,456 =$=======9='=8=3=0= 

205,397 $ 6,951,505 

79 456 9 830 

284.853 $ 6,961.335 

284 ,853 $ 6,961,335 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Comparative Schedules of General Fixed Assets by Source 

June 30, 1996 

EXHIBIT H-1 

General Fixed Assets: 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

$ 9,187,932 
35,790,981 

4,617,891 
12,423,509 
1.275.471 

$63,295.784 

Investment in General Fixed Assets by Source: 

* 

Investments in property acquired prior to 
July 1, 1983 

General fund 
Special revenue funds 
Capital projects funds 
Donations 

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets 

$ 1,440,960* 
22,208,622 

2,771,501 
34,412,771 

2. 461. 930 

$63,295.784 

It is impossible to determine the sources of investments prior to this 
date because records reflecting information in this form were not 
maintained. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Program and Department 

June 30, 1995 

Buildings 
and 

Program and Department Land Improvements 

Administration: 
City Manager $ 0 $ 0 
City Clerk 0 0 
Finance 0 0 
Legal 0 0 
Information Services 0 0 
Dog Track 0 9,070,894 
Cable TV 0 0 
City Council 0 0 
Other - Unclassified 3,559,675 4,418,364 

Total Administration 3,559,675 13,489,258 

Protective Services: 
Police 23,860 238,036 
Joint Communications 0 0 
Fire 161,100 2,107,623 
Disaster Services 0 0 
Human Rights 0 0 

Total Protective Services 184 960 2,345,659 

Facilities and Environment: 
Airport 104,661 3,384,741 
Engineering 0 0 
Streets and Sewers 131,030 795,668 
Community Development 0 0 
Housing Services 0 0 
Planning Services 0 0 
Building Services 65,510 1,902,424 
Health Services 0 0 

Total Facilities and Environment 301,201 6,082,833 

Leisure Services: 
Park 3,647,620 2,337,602 
Civic Center 172,246 4,416,123 
Recreation 1,335,160 3,788,962 
Library 66 960 3,149,460 

Total Leisure Services 5,221,986 13,692,147 

Construction in Progress 0 0 

Total General Fixed Assets $ 9,267,822 $ 35,609,897 
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EXHIBIT H-2 

Improvements Machinery 
Other Than and Construction 
Buildings Equipment in Progress Total 

$ 0 $ 101,683 $ 0 $ 101 , 683 
0 11,558 0 11,558 
0 243,837 0 243,837 
0 15,751 0 15,751 
0 116,871 0 116,871 

1,073,877 0 0 10,144,771 
0 296,897 0 296,897 
0 1,240 0 1,240 
0 0 0 7,978,039 

1 073 877 787 837 0 18,910,647 

0 1,006,462 0 1,268,358 
0 172,744 0 172,744 
0 1,833,882 0 4,103,818 
0 103,545 0 103,545 
0 22 597 0 22 597 

0 3,139,230 0 5,67L062 

1,821,862 1,366,782 0 6,933,220 
0 323,357 0 323,357 

17,135 2,740,623 0 3,684,456 
136,561 34,537 0 171,098 

0 257,314 0 257,314 
0 50,051 0 50,051 
0 90,911 0 2,058,845 
0 78 635 0 78 635 

L 975. 558 4,942,210 0 13. 556. 976 

1,322,587 1,068,417 0 8,216,336 
43,573 1,019,269 0 5,655,526 

202,296 300,159 0 5,626,959 
0 Ll66.387 0 4.382.807 

L568.456 3.554.232 0 23. 881. 628 

0 0 1.275.471 1.275.471 

$ 4.617.891 $ 12.423.509 $ 1.275.471 $ 63.295.784 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA EXHIBIT H-3 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets - By Program and Department 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 

Program and Department 

Administration: 
City Manager 
City Clerk 
Finance 
Legal 
Information Services 
Dog Track 
Cable TV 
City Council 
Other - Unclassified 

Total Administration 

Protective Services: 
Police 
Joint Communications 
Fire 
Disaster Services 
Human Rights 

Total Protective 
Services 

Facilities and Environment: 
Airport 
Engineering 
Streets and Sewers 
Community Development 
Housing Services 
Planning Services 
Building Services 
Health Services 

Total Facilities and 
Environment 

Leisure Services: 
Park 
Civic Center 
Recreation 
Library 

Total Leisure Services 

Construction in Progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

General 
Fixed Assets 

July 1 
1994 

$ 86,565 
6,969 

107,292 
11, 685 

308,787 
10,144,771 

245, 966 
1,760 

7,978,039 

18,891,834 

1,028,786 
164,615 

3,584,244 
79,824 
15 793 

4,873,262 

6,556,035 
248,705 

3,592,433 
160,736 
171,447 

36,816 
2,046,807 

42 673 

12,855,652 

8,163,515 
5,521,396 
5,567,093 
4,327,730 

23,579.734 

369 570 

Additions 

$ 11,089 
549 

14,443 
2,173 

94,420 
0 

23,163 
0 
0 

145 837 

380,196 
1,611 

470,351 
0 

3 414 

855 572 

559,339 
96,021 

216,714 
11,131 
88,029 

350 
0 

34 770 

1,006.354 

111,951 
99,102 
19,725 
52 179 

282 957 

1,326,807 

Deductions 

$ 0 
0 

14,242) 
0 

4,445) 
0 

720) 
0 
0 

19,407) 

192,575) 
0 

19,896) 
0 
0 

212,471) 

185,636) 
47,192) 

174,875) 
0 

10,735) 
0 
0 

9,265) 

427,703) 

25,052) 
5,574) 
5,072) 
3,195) 

38,893) 

369,570) 

General 
Fixed Assets 

June 30 
1995 

$ 97, 654 
7,518 

107,493 
13,858 

398,762 
10,144,771 

268,409 
1,760 

7,978,039 

19,018.264 

1,216,407 
166,226 

4,034,699 
79,824 
19 207 

5,516,363 

6,929,738 
297,534 

3,634,272 
171,867 
248,741 

37,166 
2,046,807 

68 178 

13,434,303 

8,250,414 
5,614,924 
5,581,746 
4,376,714 

23,823,798 

1,326,807 

$ 60,570,052 $ 3,617,527 $( 1,068.044) $ 63,119.535 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL 
AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25, 1996. These general purpose financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City of Dubuque, Iowa's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the provisions 
of Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and 
Local Governments. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-128 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general 
purpose financial statements of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, taken as a whole. 
The accompanying Schedule of Federal and Other Financial Assistance is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the general purpose financial statements. The information in that schedule 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented 
in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Schedule of Federal and Other Financial Assistance 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program Title 

Federal Financial Assistance 

Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Direct Programs: * 

Community Development Block Grant 
CDBG - Disaster Recovery Funds* 
Type I Fair Housing Assistance Program 
Type I Fair Housing Assistance Program 

. * Section VIII - Voucher Program 
Section VIII - Moderate Rehab* 
Section VIII - Certificate Program* 

Indirect Program - Passed Through State 
of Iowa: 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 

Total Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

Department of Justice 
Indirect Program - Passed Through Dubuque 

County, Iowa: 
Drug Control and System Improvement 

Department of Transportation 
Direct Programs: * 

Airport Improvement Programs* 
Airport Improvement Programs* 
Airport Improvement Programs* 
Airport Improvement Programs 

. * Airport Improvement Programs 
Federal Transit Administration-Planning* 
Federal Transit Administration-Operating* 
Federal Transit Administration-Capital* 

Indirect Programs - Passed Through State 
of Iowa: 

State and Community Highway Safety 
State and Community Highway Safety 
State and Community Highway Safety 
Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk 

Driving Prevention Incentive 

Total Department of Transportation 

Federal Emergency Management Agency: 
Indirect Program - Passed Through State 

of Iowa: 
Disaster Assistance 

-94-

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

14.218 
14.218 
14.401 
14.401 
14.855 
14.856 
14.857 

14.239 

16.579 

20.106 
20.106 
20.106 
20.106 
20.106 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 

20.600 
20.600 
20.600 

20.601 

83.516 

Grant Number 

B-9-MC-19-0004 
B-9-MF-19-0004 
FF207K947006 
FF207K957006 
KC-9004V 
KC-9004MR 
KC-9004E 

M9SG190103100 

95-0228 

3-19- 0028-09 
3-19-0028-10 
3-19-0028-11 
3-19-0028-15 
3-19-0028-16 
IA-90-X182 
IA-90-X182 
IA-90-X182 

96/96-11, Task 
95/96-04, Task 
95HLT-04, Task 

96-410, Task 18 

DRIA996 

13 
05 
Gl 

Program 
Expenditures 

$ 1,492,860 
54,356 

5,969 
27,520 

626,519 
876,628 

1,659,281 

112, 903 

4,856,036 

4 394 

141,681 
13,564 
22,967 
92,610 

1,652,653 
77,791 

268,916 
2,388 

4,482 
1,497 
6,755 

7 979 

2,293,283 

191 197 

(continued) 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Schedule of Federal and Other Financial Assistance 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program Title 

Department of Health and Human Services: 
Indirect Programs - Passed Through State 

of Iowa: 
AIDS Coalition 
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention 
AIDS Preventive Health 
AIDS Preventive Health 
Community-Based Health Promotion 

Total Department of Health and 
Human Services 

Total Federal Financial Assistance 

Other Financial Assistance 

Iowa Department of Transportation 
State Transit Assistance - Operating 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

93 .118 
93.197 
93.991 
93.991 
93.991 

Grant Number 

5886AP21 
5884LP04 
5886AS05 
5885AS05 
5885RR16 

01806 

(continued) 

Program 
Expenditures 

$ 1,883 
4,040 
5,780 
1,855 

279 

13 837 

$ 7,358,747 

$ 109,148 

* This program is considered a major Federal financial assistance program under the 
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984. 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 

FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25, 1996. 

We have applied procedures to test the City of Dubuque, Iowa's, compliance 
with the following requirements applicable to its federal financial 
assistance programs, which are identified in the Schedule of Federal and 
Other Financial Assistance, for the year ended June 30, 1996: 

Political activity 
Davis-Bacon Act 
Civil rights 
Cash management 
Relocation assistance and real property acquisition 
Federal financial reports 

• Allowable costs/cost principles 
Drug-free Workplace Act 
Administrative requirements 

Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the 
Office of Management and Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of 
State and Local Governments. Our procedures were substantially less in scope 
than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the 
City of Dubuque, Iowa's, compliance with the requirements listed in the 
preceding paragraph . Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed 
no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the 
second paragraph of this report. With respect to items not tested, nothing 
came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City of Dubuque, 
Iowa, had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. 
Also, the results of our procedures did not disclose any immaterial instances 
of noncompliance with those requirements . 

This report is intended for the information of the Honorable Mayor, City 
Council, management, and officials of applicable federal and state granter 
agencies . However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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w·~ 
Charles Bailly & Company r.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFIC 
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25, 1996. 

We have also audited the City of Dubuque, Iowa's, compliance with the 
requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; 
matching and level of effort, and/ or earmarking requirements; special 
reporting requirements; special tests and provisions; monitoring 
subrecipients; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or 
used for matching that are applicable to each of its major federal financial 
assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of 
Federal and Other Financial Assistance, for the year ended June 30, 1996. 
The management of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, is responsible for the City's 
compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; 
Government Audi ting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-128, 
Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-
128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City of Dubuque, Iowa's, compliance with those requirements. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The results of our audit procedures did not disclose any immaterial instances 
of noncompliance with the requirements referred to above. 

In our opinion, the City of Dubuque, Iowa, complied, in all material 
respects, with the requirements governing types of services allowed or 
unallowed; eligibility; matching and level of effort, and/or earmarking 
requirements; special reporting requirements; special tests and provisions; 
monitoring subrecipients; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts 
claimed or used for matching that are applicable to each of its major federal 
financial assistance programs for the year ended June 30, 1996. 
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This report is intended for the information of the Honorable Mayor, City 
Council, management, and officials of applicable federal and state grantor 
agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO NONMAJOR 
FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25, 1996. 

In connection with our audit of the general purpose financial statements of 
the City of Dubuque, Iowa, and with our consideration of the City's internal 
control structure used to administer federal financial assistance programs, 
as required by Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-128, Audits 
of State and Local Governments, we selected certain transactions applicable 
to certain nonmajor federal financial assistance programs for the year ended 
June 30, 1996. As required by 0MB Circular A-128, we have performed auditing 
procedures to test compliance with the requirements governing types of 
services allowed or unallowed that are applicable to those transactions. Our 
procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of 
which is the expression of an opinion on the City of Dubuque, I owa 's, 
compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. 

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed 
no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the 
preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our 
attention that caused us to believe that the City of Dubuque, Iowa, had not 
complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. Also, the 
results of our procedures did not disclose any immaterial instances of 
noncompliance with those requirements . 

This report is intended for the information of the Honorable Mayor, City 
Council, management, and officials of applicable federal and state grantor 
agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE INTERNAL 
CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTERING 

FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25 , 1996. We have also audited the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa's, compliance with requirements applicable to major federal 
financial assistance programs and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 25 , 1996. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of 
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local 
Governments. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-128 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general 
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether 
the City of Dubuque, Iowa, complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance 
with which would be material to a major federa l financial assistance program. 

In planning and performing our audits for the year ended June 30, 1996, we 
considered the internal control structure of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the general purpose financial statements of the City of Dubuque, 
Iowa, and on the compliance of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, with requirements 
applicable to major programs and to report on the internal control structure 
in accordance with 0MB Circular A-128. This report addresses our 
consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures relevant 
to compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance 
programs. We have addressed internal control structure policies and 
procedures relevant to our audit of the general purpose financial statements 
in a separate report dated November 25, 1996. 
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The management of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this 
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess 
the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure 
policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are 
to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, 
that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization 
and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that federal financial assistance programs are managed in compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any 
internal control structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of 
noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection 
of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk 
that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or 
that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures 
may deteriorate. 

For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal 
control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal 
financial assistance programs in the following categories: 

Accounting Controls: 
Investments 
Revenue and receivables 
Expenditures/expenses 

for goods and services 
and accounts payable 

Payroll 

Administrative Controls: 
General Compliance Requirements: 

Political activity 
Davis-Bacon Act 
Civil rights 
Cash management 
Relocation assistance and real 

property acquisition 
Federal financial reports 
Allowable costs/cost principles 
Drug-free Workplace Act 
Administrative requirements 

Specific Compliance Requirements: 
Types of services allowed or 

unallowed 
Eligibility 
Matching and level of effort, 

and/or earmarking requirements 
Special reporting requirements 
Special tests and provisions 
Monitoring subrecipients 

Claims for advances and 
reimbursements 

Amounts claimed or used for 
matching 

For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we 
obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures 
and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed 
control risk. 

During the year ended June 30, 1996, the City of Dubuque, Iowa, expended 95 
percent of its total federal financial assistance under major federal 
financial assistance programs. 
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We performed tests of controls, as required by 0MB Circular A-128, to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control 
structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing 
or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements, general 
requirements, and requirements governing claims for advances and 
reimbursements and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable 
to each of the City's major federal financial assistance programs, which are 
identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal and Other Financial 
Assistance. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to 
render an opinion on these internal control structure policies and 
procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its 
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to 
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control 
structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City of Dubuque, 
Iowa's, ability to administer federal financial assistance programs in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations . 

(A) In performing our dual purpose compliance testing of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, we found where a late payment service 
charge of $1.86 was charged to the program as this invoice was not 
paid timely. We also performed this compliance test as part of our 
audit of the Section VIII Housing Programs and found where $1.37 in 
sales tax was inadvertently paid by City staff . 

Recommendation 

We recommend that City staff review their purchasing and payment 
procedures to ensure that all future invoices are paid timely and that 
amounts paid are proper . 

City Response 

The Finance Department will meet with staff members working with grant 
funds and ensure that steps are taken to make timely and accurate 
payment of valid invoices. 

Conclusion 

Response accepted . 

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not 
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and 
regulations that would be material to a federal financial assistance program 
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions. 

Our consideration of the internal control structure policies and procedures 
used in administering federal financial assistance would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be 
reportable conoitions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all 
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as 
defined above. However, we believe that the reportable condition described 
above is not a material weakness. 

We also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its 
operation that we have reported to the management of the City of Dubuque, 
Iowa, in a separate letter dated November 25, 1996. 

-102-



This report is intended for the information of the Honorable Mayor, City 
Council, management, and officials of applicable federal and state grantor 
agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general. purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25, 1996. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; and Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the 
City of Dubuque, Iowa, is the responsibility of the City's management. As 
part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City's 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants. However, the objective of our audit of the general purpose financial 
statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such 
provisions. Accordingly, we do n6t express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported 
to the management of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, in a separate letter dated 
November 25, 1996. 

This report is intended for the information of the Honorable Mayor, City 
Council, management, and officials of applicable federal and state grantor 
agencies. Howev er, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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Charles Bailly & Company P.L.L.P. 

Certified Public Accountants • Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Dubuque, Iowa, as of and for.the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 25, 1996. 

We have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; and Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. 

The management of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this 
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess 
the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure 
policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are 
to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and 
that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization 
and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or 
irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection 
of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk 
that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or 
that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures 
may deteriorate. 

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial 
statements of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, for the year ended June 30, 1996, we 
obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to 
the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of 
relevant policies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed 
in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose 
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
structure. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
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We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its 
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention 
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the 
internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the 
entity's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data 
consistent with the assertions of management in the general purpose financial 
statements. Prior year reportable conditions, items (A), (B), and (C), have 
not been resolved. Current year reportable conditions are as follows: 

(A) Dock Leases - The City has not maintained an accounts receivable system 
for all of the City's dock leases to keep track of dock lease revenue 
and outstanding balances due to the City. The City has initiated 
procedures to set up such an accounts receivable system, but the system 
has not yet been fully implemented. 

Recommendation - The City should complete its implementation of an 
accounts receivable system for dock leases. 

Response - The City will have the new accounts receivable system fully 
implemented during the current fiscal year. Information is required 
from the engineering department to determine the amount due on the 
leases. Greater care will be taken to ensure that billing information 
is received and the lessor invoiced in a timely manner. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

(B) General Fixed Assets The City has a centralized custodian who 
maintains a record of the City's general fixed assets. However, there 
are no formal procedures in place to ensure that the custodian is 
notified of all completed projects which must be capitalized. 

Recommendation - Some progress has been made in this area through the 
issuance of a memo to department heads regarding the use of a standard 
form. However, further improvement is needed. The City should adopt 
a formal policy in order to improve the reporting of fixed asset 
additions, retirements, and transfers to the centralized custodian. 

Response - The City will adopt a formal administrative policy on record 
keeping for fixed assets, including additions made through capital 
improvement projects. In addition, the City will be implementing a 
fixed asset system which will be integrated into the purchasing system 
in order to improve fixed asset record keeping . 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

(C) Notes Receivable - The City has several loan programs under which it 
loans money to those owning low-income housing for the purpose of 
rehabilitating the property. The City uses a software program to track 
the amount of notes receivable under these various programs. We noted 
that loan amounts are entered in the software program as receivable 
amounts immediately upon the approval of the loan, regardless of 
whether the money has actually been paid out yet by the City. As a 
result, it is difficult to determine the City's notes receivable 
balance and to reconcile the loan amounts to the City's general ledger. 
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Recorrunendation - The City should modify its software program to enable 
a better reconciliation of the notes receivable balance and perform the 
reconciliation on a regular basis. 

Response - The City is in the process of reviewing loan processing 
systems that can meet reporting requirements and track approved loan 
amounts and amounts actually funded. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the specific internal control structure elements 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or 
irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the general 
purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected 
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. 

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be 
reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all 
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as 
defined above. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions 
described above are a material weakness. 

We also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its 
operation that we have reported to the management of the City of Dubuque, 
Iowa, in a separate letter dated November 25, 1996. 

This report is intended for the information of the Honorable Mayor, City 
Council, management, and officials of applicable federal and state granter 
agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

The following corrunents about the City's operations for the year ended 
June 30, 1996, are based exclusively upon knowledge obtained from procedures 
performed during our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the 
City. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions 
that might have had an impact on the corrunents were necessarily audited. The 
corrunents involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to 
constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. Prior year statutory 
corrunents have all been resolved. 

(1) Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has 
been approved by the City. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the 
resolution were not exceeded during the year ended June 30, 1996. 

( 2) Certified Budget Program disbursements during the year ended 
June 30, 1996, did not exceed the amounts budgeted. 

(3) Questionable Disbursements - We noted no disbursements which fail to 
meet the requirements of publi c purpose as defined in an Attorney 
General's opinion dated April 25, 1979 . 
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(4) Travel Expense - No disbursements of City money for travel expenses 
of spouses of City officials or employees were noted. 

(5) Business Transactions - We noted no business transactions between thP 
City and its officials or employees that appear to represent 
conflict of interest. 

(6) Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees 
is in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage 
should be reviewed annually to ensure that the coverage is adequate 
for current operations. 

(7) Council Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should 
have been approved in the Council minutes but were not. 

( 8) Revenue Bonds - We noted no instances of noncompliance with the 
provisions of the City's revenue bond resolutions. 

(9) Deposits and Investments - We noted no instances of noncompliance 
with the deposit and investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of 
the Code of Iowa and the City's investment policy . 

We would like to acknowledge the assistance extended to us by personnel of 
the City of Dubuque during the course of our audit. 

Should you have any questions concerning any of the preceding matters, we 
shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience. 

Dubuque, Iowa 
November 25, 1996 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

(Unaudited) 
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Table 1 
CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Facilities 
Fiscal Protective Leisure and Debt 

Year Services Services Environment Administration Service Total 

1987 $6,622 $2,989 $5,735 $1,930 $3,845 $21,121 
1988 6,179 2,657 5,724 2,081 3,776 20,417 
1989 6,510 2,762 6,727 1,778 3,853 21,630 
1990 6,873 3,025 7,056 1,960 4,305 23,219 
1991 7,315 3,222 9,041 2,042 7,094 28,714 
1992 7,843 3,429 9,123 2,270 5,532 28,197 
1993 7,874 3,548 8 ,776 2 ,237 3,915 26,350 
1994 11,068 4,407 11,092 5,456 4,276 36,299 
1995 11,747 5,207 9,785 2,927 3,764 33,430 
1996 12,202 5,508 10,060 3,252 3,750 34,772 

( 1 ) Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE (1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

( Unaudited) 

Licenses Charges 
Fiscal and Inter- for 

Year Taxes Permits Governmental Services Fines Interest Miscellaneous 

1987 $10,644 $447 $6,111 $1,994 $246 $1,003 $2,667 
1988 10,427 4 67 6,292 2,126 228 1,325 2,345 
1989 13,240 490 7,039 2,140 279 1,699 2,157 
1990 13,360 539 8,147 2,397 367 2,342 6,484 
1991 13,841 618 7,533 2,876 360 2,914 6,544 
1992 14,420 639 8,049 3,150 346 1,785 3,426 
1993 15,016 666 7,662 2,944 337 1,474 749 
1994 20,295 673 10,417 3,526 388 1,438 736 
1995 20,889 921 9,457 4,494 341 2,155 1,130 
1996 21,620 717 9,253 5,491 350 1,686 765 

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 

Fiscal 
Year 

1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

( 1) Tax levy 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Moneys and Mobile State Replace Hotel 
Property Credits Homes Personal Prop. Sales Motel 

Tax Replaced Tax Tax Exemption Tax (1) Tax 

$9,933 $31 $34 $213 $ $433 
9,465 22 31 500 409 
8,174 36 38 671 3,886 435 
8,049 47 46 457 4,314 447 
8,527 40 42 457 4,316 459 
8,580 72 34 492 4,618 624 
8,762 38 31 493 4,821 871 

14,168 38 33 493 4,796 767 
14,300 39 33 493 5, 182 842 
14,928 40 32 472 5,318 830 

approved February 1988. 
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Table 2 

Total 

$23,112 
23,210 
27,044 
33,636 
34, 68 6 
31,815 
28,848 
37,473 
39,387 
39,882 

Table 2A 

Total 

$10,644 
10,427 
13,240 
13,360 
13,841 
14,420 
15,016 
20,295 
20,889 
21,620 
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Total 
Fiscal Tax 

Year Levy Cl) 

1987 $ 13,473 
1988 12,580 
1989 11,018 
1990 11,064 
1991 11,851 
1992 12,694 
1993 13,242 
1994 14,851 
1995 14,997 
1996 15,182 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Percent of Delinquent 
Current Year Current Taxes Tax 
Collections Collected Collections 

$ 12, 728 94.5 % $ 583 
11,957 95.0 4 62 
10,790 97.9 466 
10,889 98.4 415 
11, 618 98.0 383 
12,042 94.9 608 
12,635 95.4 571 
14,101 94. 9 161 
14,635 97.6 116 
14,832 97.7 118 

(1) Includes tax increment levy. 
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Total 
Tax 

Collections 

$ 13,311 
12,419 
11,256 
11,304 
12,001 
12,650 
13,206 
14,262 
14,751 
14,950 



Total. 
Fiscal. Tax 

Year Levy (1) 

1987 $ 13,473 
1988 12,580 
1989 11,018 
1990 11,064 
1991 11,851 
1992 12,694 
1993 13,242 
1994 14,851 
1995 14,997 
1996 15,182 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Percent of DeJ.inquent 
Current Year Current Taxes Tax 
CoJ.J.ections CoJ.J.ected CoJ.J.ections 

$ 12,728 94.5% $ 583 
11,957 95.0 462 
10,790 97.9 466 
10,889 98.4 415 
11,618 98.0 383 
12,042 94.9 608 
12,635 95.4 571 
14,101 94.9 161 
14,635 97.6 116 
14,832 97.7 118 

(1) Includes tax increment levy. 
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Total. 
Tax 

CoJ.J.ections 

$ 13,311 
12,419 
11,256 
11,304 
12,001 
12,650 
13,206 
14,262 
14,751 
14,950 
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Ratio of 
Total Tax 

Collections to 
Total Tax Levy 

98.8 % 
98.7 

102 .2 
102.2 
101. 3 

99.7 
99.7 
96. 0 
98.4 
98.5 

Outstanding 
Delinquent 

Taxes 

$ 760 
915 
677 
437 
287 
331 
367 
956 
245 
232 

Table 3 

Ratio of 
Delinquent Taxes 

to Total 
Tax Levy 

5.6% 
7.3 
6.1 
3.9 
2.4 
2.6 
2.8 
6.4 
1. 6 
1. 5 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF PROPERTY 

Fiscal 
Year 

1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

( 1) A 

Real 

Taxable 
Value 

$ 889,046 
907,787 
945,898 
955,819 
966,009 
984,894 
960,732 
997,573 

1,127,153 
1,151,187 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Property Personal Property 

Assessed Assessed Estimated 
Actual Value Value Actual Value 

$ 1,055,468 $ 42,653 $ 42,653 
1,062,145 - ( 1) - ( 1) 
1,079,200 - ( 1) - ( 1) 
1,089,808 - (1) - ( 1) 
1,106,628 - ( 1) - ( 1) 
1,129,691 - ( 1) - ( 1) 
1,185,363 - ( 1) - ( 1) 
1,229,395 - ( 1) - ( 1) 
1,450,026 - ( 1 ) - ( 1 ) 
1,487,208 - ( 1) - (1) 

Personal Property Tax Replacement payment of $472 from 
Iowa replaces this lost value. 
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Exemptions 

Real 
Property 

$ 12,173 
12,042 
11,873 
11,734 
11,351 
11,160 
10,783 
10,681 
10,642 
10,467 

the State of 

I 
I 

I 



Table 4 

Total Ratio of Total 
Assessed Value 

Assessed Estimated to Total Estimated 
Value Actual Value Actual Value 

$ 919,526 $ 1,098,121 83.74% 
895,745 1,062,145 84.33 
934,025 1,079,200 86.55 
944,085 1,089,808 86.63 
954,658 1,106,628 86.27 
973,734 1,129,691 86.19 
949,949 1,185,363 80.14 
986,892 1,229,395 80.27 

1,116,511 1,450,026 77.00 
1,140,720 1,487,208 76.70 
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Fiscal 
Year 

1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

Source: 

Dubuque 
City 

$14.5819 
13. 9529 
11. 8007 
11. 6891 
12.3004 
12.7742 
12.4989 
12.60588 
11.78206 
11.78215 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

PROPERTY TAX RATES 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

TAX RATES PER $1,000 ASSESSED VALUE 

Board 
Dubuque of Education 

School and Area 1 Dubuque 
District Independents Voe. Tech County 

$12.8882 $ . 364 $ .4359 $ 4.8295 
12.2700 .617 .4535 4.5858 
11. 9511 .613 .4517 5. 7209 
12.3212 .613 .4503 5.6024 
12.8876 .613 . 4515 6.2061 
13. 6506 .6186 . 4 620 7.0749 
13.6650 . 6733 . 4 699 7.6173 
13.92886 .50303 .47495 7.61714 
13.60398 .53777 .49222 6.95885 
13 .70668 . 7 4 972 .49360 6.13169 

Dubuque County Auditor's Office. 
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Table 5 

I 
Ratio of 
Dubuque 

City 
Total To Total 

$33.0995 44.05% 
31.8792 43.77 
30.5374 38.64 
30.6760 38 .11 
32.4586 37.90 
34.5803 36.94 
34.9244 35.79 
35.12986 35.88 
33.37488 35.30 
32.86384 35.85 
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TAXPAYER 

Interstate Power Company 

Peoples Natural Gas Company 

Kennedy Mall 

Wm. C. Brown Company 

A.Y. McDonald Manufacturing 

u. s. West Communications 

F .D. L. Foods 

Nordstrom, Inc. 

Georgia-Pacific Corporation 

Plaza 20, Inc. 

TOTALS 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 
December 31, 1995 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

1994 
ASSESSED 

TYPE OF BUSINESS VALUATION 

Utility $ 51,055 

Utility 20,985 

Shopping Center 18,063 

Publishing 11,894 

Co. Plumbing Supplies 10,611 

Telephone Service 8,676 

Meat Processing 8,396 

Warehouse Distributor 8,191 

Cardboard Containers 7,123 

Shopping Plaza 6 059 

~ 151,053 

Source: Dubuque County - Auditor. 
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Table 6 

PERCENTAGE OF 
TOTAL ASSESSED 

VALUATION 

3.43% 

1. 41 

1. 21 

.80 

. 71 

.58 

.56 

.55 

.48 

.41 

10.14 % 



Fiscal 
Year 

1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Special Assessment 
Billings 

$209 
189 
128 

79 
72 
59 
58 
44 
51 
33 

(1) Includes prepayments. 
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Table 7 

Special Assessments 
Collected (1) 

$579 
269 
397 
268 
373 
276 
333 
339 
609 
147 

I 

I 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

June 30, 1996 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Actual Valuations 

Legal debt margin: 
Debt limitation-5% of actual valuations 
Debt applicable to limitation: 

Total bonded debt 
Less: Revenue bonds 

Tax-increment financing bonds 

Total debt applicable to limitation 

Legal debt margin 
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$ 18,030 
2,995 

835 

Table 8 

$1,487,208 

$ 74,364 

14,200 

$ 60,164 



Table 9 
CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT 
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Gross Debt 
Bonded Payable 

Ratio of 
Net Bonded 

Net Debt to 
Net 

Bonded 
Fiscal Assessed Debt Other Bonded Assessed Debt per 

Year Population (1) Value (2) (3) Revenues(4) Debt Value Capita 

1987 62 $ 919,526 $ 23,925 $ 7,725 $ 16,200 l. 76% $ .261 
1988 62 895,745 22,870 7,525 15,345 l. 71 .248 
1989 62 934,025 25,425 7,325 18,100 l. 94 .292 
1990 62 944,085 21,455 3,025 18,430 l. 95 . 297 
1991 58 954,658 18,395 0 18,395 l. 93 .317 
1992 58 973,734 16,255 0 16,255 l. 67 .280 
1993 58 949,949 16,340 0 16,340 l. 72 .282 
1994 58 986,892 17,125 0 17,125 l. 74 . 295 
1995 58 1,116,511 14,775 0 14,775 l. 32 .255 
1996 59 1,140,720 14,200 0 14,200 l. 24 .241 

(1) U.S. Census Bureau. 
(2) From Table 4 . 
(3) Amount does not include special assessment bonds and revenue bonds. 
( 4) GO bonds repaid with revenues from the Dubuque Racing Association. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES 
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT 

TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Total 
Total General 

Fiscal Debt Governmental 
Year Principal Interest (1) Service Expenditures (2) 

1 987 $1,300 $ 960 $ 2,260 $ 21,121 
1988 1 , 415 1,148 2,563 20 , 417 
1989 1,570 1,052 2 ,622 21,630 
1990 1,585 1,206 2 , 791 23,219 
1991 2,095 1,221 3,316 28,714 
1992 2,140 1,242 3 ,382 28,197 
1993 4 , 530* 1,137 5,667 26,350 
1994 2,315 908 3,223 36,299 
1995 2,350 915 3,265 33,430 
1996 2,435 757 3,192 34,772 

(1) Excludes bond insurance and other costs. 
(2) Includes general, special revenue, and debt service funds. 

* Includes advance refunded principal of $2,300,000. 
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Table 10 

Ratio of 
Debt Service to 

General Governmental 
Expenditures 

10. 70% 
12.55 
12.12 
12.02 
11. 55 
11. 99 
21. 51 

8.88 
9.77 
9.18 



Jurisdiction 

Direct: 
City of Dubuque 

Total 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

C0!)1FUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

June 30, 1996 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Net General 
Obligation 
Bonded Debt 

Percentage 
Applicable 

to 
.Amount 

Applicable 
Outstanding Government to Government 

S 12,758 (1) 100.000% S 12,758 

$ 12,758 S 12,758 

Table 11 

(1) Excluding general obligation bonds reported in the enterprise funds. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE 
PARKING BONDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Net Revenue 
Fiscal Gross Operating Available For Debt Service Reg!,!irem.ents 

Year Revenue(l) Expenses(2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total 

1987 $ 700 $369 $331 $125 $ 63 $188 
1988 770 369 401 125 58 183 
1989 782 378 404 140 55 195 
1990 762 397 365 153 45 198 
1991 995 502 4 93 0 216 216 
1992 1,061 513 548 80 224 304 
1993 1,160 504 656 85 218 303 
1994 1,090 543 547 90 212 302 
1995 1,108 592 516 95 205 300 
1996 1,152 631 521 105 198 303 

( 1) Total revenues (including interest). 
(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation. 
(3) Bond ordinance requires 1. 3 coverage. 
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Table 12 

Coverage(3) 

1. 76 
2.19 
2.07 
1. 84 
2.28 
1. 80 
2.17 
1. 81 
1. 72 
1. 72 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION PERMITS, AND BANK DEPOSITS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Property Value (1) Construction 

Fiscal Number of 
Year Other (3) Residential Totals Permits 

1987 $ 375,777 $ 679,691 $ 1,055,468 1,675 $ 
1988 378,376 683,769 1,062,145 1,818 
198 9 390,222 688,978 1,079,200 1,638 
1990 395,794 694,014 1,089,808 1,663 
1991 407,989 698,639 1,106,628 1, 670 
1992 424,616 705,075 1,129,691 1,656 
1993 352,979 832,384 1,185,363 1,780 
1994 381,324 848 ,071 1,229,395 1,862 
1995 441,399 1,008,627 1,450,026 6,918* 
1996 456,075 1,031,133 1,487,208 4,190 

( 1) Estimated actual value from Table 4. 
(2) Source: Iowa Department of Banking. 
(3) Commercial, Industrial, and Utilities. 

Permits 

Value 

22,945 
31,320 
25,163 
32,804 
54,233 
38,532 
41, 964 
56,928 
65,599 
75,569 

* Hail and wind storm in August 1994, caused extensive roof and siding damage 
throughout the City, greatly increasing permit activity. 
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Calendar 
Year 

1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

TAXABLE RETAIL SALES 

DUBUQUE COUNTY 

Last Ten Years 
(Amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

$ 

Taxable 
Sales 

405,402 
421,325 
450,528 
477,305 
506,139 
530,852 
599,002 
610,691 
688,699 
771,946 

Source: Iowa Department of Revenue and Finance. 
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Table 14 

Percent 
Growth 

5.68 % 
3.93 
6.93 
5.94 
6.04 
4.88 

12.84 
1. 95 

12.77 
12.09 



CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

(2) 
Per (3) ( 4) (5) 

Fiscal ( l) Capita Median School Unemployment 
Year 

1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

Data 
(1) 
(2) 
(3) 
( 4) 
(5) 

* 

Population Income Age Enrollment Rate 

62,321 $ 11,894 28 10,197 8.6% 
62,321 12, 966 28 9, 920 6.8 
62,321 13,500 28 9,787 6.1 
57,538 14,207 34 9,618 6.7 
57 , 538 16,323 34 9,754 6.1 
57,538 16,469 34 9,867 6.8 
57,538 18,172 34 9,995 5.5 
57,538 18,503 34 10,022 4.3 
57,538 19,891 34 10,133 3.8 
59,084 * 34 10,065 4. 8 

Sources: 
Bureau of Census; 1994 update of 1990 census. 
Survey of Current Business, U.S. Department of Commerce. 
Bureau of Census; 1990 census. 
School District. 
Iowa Department of Employment Services . 

Unavailable at report date. 
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 

Insurer Policy Number 

LIABILITY INSURANCE 

Iowa Communities Assurance Pool IP041901414000003 

Iowa Communities Assurance Pool IP035901414000003 

Iowa Communities Assurance Pool IP015901414000003 

Iowa Communities Assurance Pool IP039901414000003 

Iowa Communities Assurance Pool IP040891414000003 

Phoenix Aviation Managers 

St. Paul F & M Ins. Group 

Transcontinental 

PROPERTY INSURANCE 

U.S. Fidelity & Guaranty Co . 

CRIME INSURANCE 

Allied Group Insurance 

BOILER INSURANCE 

Hartford Steam Boiler 

12459 

EM06649597 

LLP1622436 

9CP-30000958903 

BD7900557276 

CH-8317973-14 
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Expiration 
Date Details of Coverage 

7/1/96 Municipal General Liability 
Includes EMT's and 
Ambulance Service 

7/1/96 Municipal Auto Liability 
Includes Transit Liability 

7/1/96 Comprehensive & Collision 

7/1/96 Public Official Liability 

7/1/96 Police Professional 

7/1/96 Airport Liability 

8/1/96 Professional Liability­
Nurses 

8/1/96 Liquor Law Liability 

7/1/96 Comprehensive Business 
Policy 

7/1/96 Public Official Bond 

7/1/96 Boilers & Machinery 



$ 5,000,000 
$ 1,000 

$ 4,000,000 

$ 2,000,000 
$ 2 ,000,000 
$ 5,000 

$ 2,000,000 
$ 2,000,000 
$ 4,000 

$ 20,000,000 

$ 1,000,000 
$ 3,000,000 

$ 1,000,000 

$ 89,737,630 
$ 10,000 
$ 10,000,000 
$ 547,940 
$ 711,643 
$ 131,317 
$ 87,426 
$ 5,000 

$ 50,00 0 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 

$ 2 ,500,000 
$ 5,000 

Liability Limits 

Each Occurrence 
Deductible 

Each Accident 

Per Scheduled 
Automobiles 

Each Claim 
Aggregate 
Deductible 

Per Person/Agg. 
Aggregate 
Deductible 

Aggregate 

Each Person 
Total Limit 

Each Common Cause 

Building & Contents 
Deductible 
Earthquake 
Business Interruption 
EDP Equipment 
Mobile Equipment 
Communications Equipment 
Signing 

All Employees 
City Manager 
Finance Director 
Treasurer 
Administrative Service Manager 

Per Accident 
Deductible 

Total 
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Table 16 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Annual 
Premium 

197,944 

148,497 

40,420 

24,408 

42,157 

17,200 

175 

2,364 

115,188 

3,836 

65,879 

658,068 

I 

I 
I 



Date of Incorporation 
Form of Government 
Population - 1990 Census 
Nwnber of employees: 

Full Time 
Part Time/Seasonal 

Area in square miles 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

Miscellaneous Statistics 

June 30, 1996 
(Unaudited) 

City of Dubuque facilities and services: 
Miles of streets 
Nwnber of street lights 
Nwnber of traffic signals 
Culture and Recreation: 

Parks 
Park acreage 
Golf courses 
Swimming Pools 
Civic Center 

Fire Protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of fire personnel and officers 

Police Protection: 
Nwnber of stations 
Nwnber of police personnel and officers 

Sewerage System: 
Miles of sanitary sewers 
Miles of storm sewers 
Number of treatment plants 
Number of service connections 
Daily average treatment in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons 

Water System: 
Miles of water mains 
Nwnber of service connections 
Nwnber of fire hydrants 
Daily average consumption in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity of plant in gallons 
Public Transit System 

Table 17 

1837 
Council/Manager - Ward 

59,084 

510 
278 

25 

325 
3,229 

89 

29 
728 

1 
2 
1 

6 
90 

1 
80 

152 
144 

1 
19,656 

10,200,000 
15,000,000 

250 
19,616 

2,000 
8,519,740 

18,000,000 
Vehicles - 24 

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity: 
Education: 

Nwnber of elementary schools 
Number of secondary schools 
Nwnber of colleges 
Number of universities 
Number of theological seminaries 

Hospitals: 
Number of hospitals 
Number of licensed patient beds 
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17 
7 
4 
1 
2 

2 
584 
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